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          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Good morning.

          3  Welcome to the State and Federal Legislation

          4  Committee hearing. At the moment we have with us one

          5  of the members of the Committee, Council Member

          6  Miller, other members will be joining us pretty

          7  soon, they are participating in a number of other

          8  meetings that are taking place downstairs, but we

          9  have with us the Counsel to this Committee Mr.

         10  Gilberto Valdez, to my left. And we also have Mr.

         11  Frank Tramantano, who is the Assistant Director of

         12  the Finance Division.

         13                 Today we will consider a variety of

         14  Home Rule Messages, one of which involves a

         15  reconveyance of property for which taxes were not

         16  paid but where the circumstances were such that the

         17  individuals may be entitled to recoup their former

         18  property after paying all taxes and penalties. This

         19  Home Rule Message is SLR 89, companion resolution to

         20  SLR 26, which was passed at our State Legislative

         21  hearing on April 27th.

         22                 We will hear from the Mayor's Office,

         23  if they have any objection to this SLR.

         24                 We will also hear testimony today

         25  concerning several pieces of legislation, SLR 94, 98
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          2  and 102, that affect patients' plans whose members

          3  include Deputy Sheriffs, Emergency Medical

          4  Technicians, EMTs and paramedics and fire alarm

          5  dispatchers.

          6                 In the case of Deputy Sheriffs, a new

          7  20-year retirement program will be developed and in

          8  the case of the EMTs, paramedics and fire alarm

          9  dispatchers, the new 25-year retirement program will

         10  be developed. We will consider SLR 47, which will

         11  allow cities with populations in excess of one

         12  million to set speed limits below 25 miles per hour,

         13  provided that such speed limits are set with the

         14  explicit purpose of facilitating the use of traffic

         15  calming measures.

         16                 We will also consider SLR 49, which

         17  will ensure that retirees from the former Housing

         18  and Transit Police Department receive the same

         19  health, welfare and medical benefits that are

         20  provided to members of the New York City Police

         21  Department.

         22                 SLR 63 and its accompanying

         23  preconsidered SLR are the last two SLRs that we will

         24  consider. These bills will remove the sole authority

         25  of the Mayor to designate the agency responsible for
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          2  the protection of animals.

          3                 We will consider two Mayor's

          4  messages. The first will provide the necessary state

          5  law amendment to allow the City to continue the use

          6  of joint bidding on public works projects.

          7                 The second Mayor's message will

          8  expand the jurisdiction of the New York City

          9  Environmental Control Board to include the

         10  processing of landmark law violations.

         11                 Lastly, we will be filing SLR 68 and

         12  85 because of technical errors in these bills.

         13                 Before the Administration begins

         14  testifying I am going to request that anyone who

         15  testifies before the Committee summarize their

         16  written remarks and not read them verbatim into the

         17  record.

         18                 Also, because there are so many items

         19  on the agenda for us to consider, I am going to

         20  request that everyone keep their remarks to less

         21  than ten minutes.

         22                 Now we will begin by hearing

         23  testimony from the Administration concerning SLR 94,

         24  98 and 102, those pieces of legislation that will

         25  create new patient programs.
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          2                 We would also like to ask the

          3  Administration if they have any objection to SLR 89,

          4  a reconveyance of property.

          5                 MR. MULLEN: Good morning, Mr.

          6  Chairman, members of the Committee. My name is Al

          7  Mullen, I am with the Mayor's Office of Legislative

          8  Affairs. The Administration does not object to SLR

          9  89.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Good morning, Mr.

         11  James Hanley. Please identify yourself.

         12                 MS. ROMEO: Robin Romeo, Office of

         13  Labor Relations.

         14                 MR. DOWLING: Andrew Dowling, Office

         15  of Management and Budget.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Good morning.

         17                 MR. DOWLING: Good morning.

         18                 MR. HANLEY: Good morning. To

         19  summarize, as you had indicated, before I read a

         20  prepared statement, I do have a prepared statement,

         21  I am Jim Hanley, I am the Commissioner of Labor

         22  Relations for the City of New York. And simply put,

         23  these bills that you just referred to, SLR 94, 98

         24  and 102, our biggest objection is the process. If

         25  there is a process in supporting legislation, which
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          2  has been tried and true for a number of years now

          3  for every other union in the City of New York, then

          4  clearly that is the process that we are committed

          5  to.

          6                 We as a City are required to bargain

          7  and negotiate on a lot of things that maybe we might

          8  not otherwise want to negotiate on at times, but we

          9  do negotiate on them in good faith, and that is the

         10  bargaining process.

         11                 If so many other unions had sat down

         12  and rolled up their sleeves and did it the old

         13  fashioned way, i.e. negotiate for supportive

         14  legislation, then I think the end run approach is

         15  harmful for the process, it does not serve the

         16  process well at all, and I think it is a distortion.

         17                 Having said that, SLR 94 establishes

         18  an optional 20-year improved benefit retirement

         19  program for Deputy Sheriffs. SLR 98 establishes a

         20  25-year optional retirement program for EMT members

         21  regardless of age and states that it is self-funded.

         22                 SLR 102 also establishes a 25-year

         23  optional retirement program for fire alarm

         24  dispatchers, regardless of age, that is supposedly

         25  self-funded.
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          2                 We are opposed to these bills for

          3  similar reasons. They were introduced either in the

          4  absence of any discussion between the City and the

          5  labor unions representing these employees, or they

          6  were introduced after the union unsuccessfully tried

          7  to achieve this benefit in collective bargaining.

          8                 All three may involve a cost to the

          9  City representing an unfunded mandate, which will be

         10  explained further by representatives of the Office

         11  of Management and Budget.

         12                 SLR 94 establishes a benefit for

         13  Deputy Sheriffs which was never raised in collective

         14  bargaining, nor has the union ever sought to discuss

         15  this bill with the City. The only justification

         16  offered for passing this bill states that the

         17  benefit change is necessary to attract and retain

         18  qualified candidates for the job of Deputy Sheriffs,

         19  as it is becoming increasingly dangerous.

         20                 These reasons are traditionally

         21  reserved to and addressed in the collective

         22  bargaining process.

         23                 SLR 98 establishes a benefit for

         24  EMTs, it was raised in a different form, a 20-year

         25  benefit, during the bargaining with the supervisors,
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          2  that was dropped by the union.

          3                 The only justification offered to

          4  that bill is also addressed, to a perceived problem

          5  of retention of employees in these positions due to

          6  the difficulty of the job.

          7                 SLR 102 has not been discussed in

          8  bargaining, again the only justification offered for

          9  that bill is to make the job more attractive and

         10  retain current employees.

         11                 Traditionally concerns of our

         12  retirement and retention are addressed in bargaining

         13  over employees' salaries.

         14                 Wages are a mandatory subject of

         15  bargaining, and in fact the issue of recruitment and

         16  retention has been raised many times in the past as

         17  a rationale for raising salary levels.

         18                 The Deputy Sheriffs and EMTs recently

         19  finished negotiating their collective bargaining

         20  agreements without attempting to address this issue.

         21                 Negotiations on the Fire Alarm

         22  Dispatchers' contract have not yet concluded. A

         23  pension enhancement is not the usual method to

         24  address recruitment and retention.

         25                 Furthermore, while bargaining on
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          2  employee pensions is a prohibitive subject to

          3  bargaining, the City and the labor unions

          4  representing City employees have often worked

          5  together in the past to develop and pass legislation

          6  that is acceptable to the interests of all parties.

          7                 A perfect example is Chapter 96 of

          8  1995, an improved retirement program for civilian

          9  employees Citywide, which resulted from many months

         10  of bargaining and discussions between the City and

         11  the municipal labor representatives. Often support

         12  for legislation for improved benefit plans has been

         13  negotiated between the City and the uniformed

         14  employee unions. For example, the 20-year retirement

         15  program legislation for Correction Officers and

         16  Sanitation workers negotiated in 1989 and 1995, and

         17  variable supplement plans for police and

         18  firefighters. These were discussed across the

         19  bargaining table and we supported that legislation.

         20                 It is always in the interest of all

         21  parties to work together and develop legislation

         22  that is drafted and costed correctly and addresses

         23  itself to the unique problems of employees that need

         24  addressing. Piecemeal, one-sided legislation is

         25  often fraught with technical problems, and other
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          2  problems that could have been avoided if both sides

          3  had worked together.

          4                 However, the proponents of these

          5  bills have not seen fit to work with the City on

          6  these plans. As a result, technically flawed

          7  legislation that may not address the problems that

          8  they seek to fix have been introduced. While for the

          9  most part these bills were never raised in

         10  bargaining, one group saw fit to raise the issue.

         11  The City was willing to discuss an improved plan,

         12  however, rather than deal with piecemeal legislation

         13  for individual employee groups that could result in

         14  uneven distribution of retirement benefits to

         15  different employees, an unjustified and unfair

         16  result for other employee groups, the City asked the

         17  union to address the issue with the Municipal Labor

         18  Committee Pension Committee so that the issue could

         19  be dealt with on a Citywide basis. Apparently the

         20  union did not, and the demand was dropped in

         21  bargaining.

         22                 The City is not opposed to

         23  legislation that offers improved retirement benefit

         24  plans for its employees where there is a guarantee

         25  of no cost, where the legislation is developed in
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          2  coordination with the City and where it is applied

          3  to all employees fairly.

          4                 The justification offer for these

          5  bills, that of retention, an issue properly

          6  addressed in bargaining over wages, is not adequate

          7  to overcome its flaws.

          8                 There is a history between the City

          9  and the unions of developing acceptable legislation.

         10  Given that failure here, the lack of a guarantee of

         11  no cost, the destructiveness to the bargaining

         12  process and the failure to address the issue

         13  Citywide, this legislation should not be passed and

         14  I must urge you not to issue a home rule message.

         15                 I think we also bear some obligation

         16  for all of those other unions who have in fact sat

         17  down and worked hard to achieve a change with the

         18  City in good faith through a pretty much well

         19  established process. We owe them as well.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 MR. DOWLING: Good morning. My name is

         22  Andy Dowling, I am from OMB. I had prepared some

         23  testimony regarding the potential cost involved with

         24  this bill. I am going to paraphrase from my remarks

         25  regarding how to understand how the cost could
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          2  materialize.

          3                 Typically in an improved, an optional

          4  benefit is proposed. A benefit is proposed to

          5  incumbent members, meaning they are on the payroll.

          6  And if an incumbent member believes that he or she

          7  can benefit, he will choose that benefit. That is

          8  what we call adverse selection. I will just give you

          9  one example.

         10                 Tier I member, it is still possible

         11  that a Tier I member exists regarding age and

         12  service profiles that ended in 1973. If the member

         13  is 48 years old and a new improved plan comes along

         14  where he has enough service, 25 years, he is 28

         15  years, he could retire almost immediately, pay the

         16  six percent, maybe for one year, if the Deputy

         17  Sheriff bill provides for that, and yet,

         18  approximately a five, six year acceleration of a

         19  lifetime pension.

         20                 In addition, the City sponsors health

         21  and welfare contributions on behalf of a retired

         22  member. We think that is a cost for that incumbent

         23  member, because of the five-year acceleration. I

         24  don't have all of the examples worked out, because

         25  there are three plans and many variations, but it is
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          2  possible that the acceleration could be 17 years, 15

          3  years, a long period of time. So what subsidizes

          4  those costs?

          5                 Well, some mandatory participation

          6  for Deputy Sheriffs, but is it enough? We really

          7  don't know.

          8                 Was the pricing done by the actuary

          9  who did this bill? Did it address the acceleration

         10  of health and welfare funds? Did it address the

         11  accelerated shortening of the normal contribution

         12  funding formula that the City actuary applies? It

         13  may have, but there is still no guarantee, there was

         14  no debate about what the assumptions were going

         15  forward, there was no talk with the Office of Labor

         16  Relations in connection with OMB about these plans.

         17                 That is basically my understanding of

         18  these bills, and why, you know, as a representative

         19  from the Office of Management and Budget I am

         20  recommending opposition because it could cost money.

         21  And I fully agree with Mr. Hanley's characterization

         22  of going around the normal process of mutually

         23  supported legislation.

         24                 I think that summarizes my written

         25  testimony.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Are there any

          3  questions from our members?

          4                 Let us recognize Mr. James Oddo, a

          5  member of our Committee.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chairman.

          8                 Mr. Hanley, could you assess for me

          9  the argument made by some of the proponents of this

         10  legislation that by actually taking the step of

         11  bringing a home rule message to the Council, that

         12  actually facilitates the collective bargaining, in

         13  that this is a stimulus, if you will, to the

         14  collective bargaining process, could you assess

         15  those comments for me?

         16                 MR. HANLEY: I have been doing this

         17  for about 27 years and I am not stimulated.

         18                 People who roll up their sleeves and

         19  come to the bargaining table to try to address their

         20  issues, not matter what they are, and over the years

         21  I have addressed a lot of issues, very real concrete

         22  issues, issues that didn't seem too real at the

         23  outset, like sidewalks, locker rooms, things of that

         24  nature, anything that is brought to the table I

         25  address. And I don't think there is a City facility
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          2  that I haven't spent some time in, whether they are

          3  jails or sanitation or whatever, and to go around

          4  the process, a process that I must say I am deeply

          5  committed to, it is the law, more importantly it is

          6  something that we have dealt with and do deal with

          7  every single day and the end run around the process

          8  does not in any way spur on discussions or stimulate

          9  me, but rather it has quite the opposite effect.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: We have spoken on

         11  SLR 94, 98 and 102, do you have any comments

         12  regarding 49?

         13                 MR. HANLEY: Yes, we do.

         14                 To summarize, the merger of the

         15  Housing and Transit Police Department with the New

         16  York City Police Department, those negotiations with

         17  all of the affected unions were conducted by my

         18  office, and we addressed every issue that was raised

         19  with all of the various unions. At times we

         20  negotiated with say the Transit sergeants and the

         21  City sergeants at the same time together jointly. In

         22  fact it was a very creative approach and I think we

         23  did whatever we could to address everybody's issues.

         24                 We have objections to this bill on a

         25  couple of grounds. In particular, it requires that
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          2  we provide and mandate certain types of benefits. We

          3  don't do that with our welfare funds within the City

          4  of New York. We are required to negotiate on what

          5  the economic amounts are and what they will be; that

          6  is to say the payment from the City of New York to

          7  the union on behalf of individual employees or

          8  retirees. So, that requirement we believe is

          9  technically flawed.

         10                 In addition to that, there is a

         11  negotiated settlement with all of the uniformed

         12  unions that requires us, we agreed to continue to

         13  provide funding for the employees who were retirees

         14  of the Transit Police Department or the Housing

         15  Police Department, and there is no such delineation

         16  if you take a look at the contract. It says we pay X

         17  amount of dollars for active employees and X amount

         18  of dollars for retirees.

         19                 So, the benefit side and mandating it

         20  is a problem.

         21                 In addition to that, the civilians,

         22  the City of New York was not to pay for the civilian

         23  act of retirees, the retirees. They were going to be

         24  covered by the various respective funds between

         25  their union, negotiated agreement and the Housing
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          2  Authority.

          3                 So, on those two grounds we do have

          4  technical problems and we do have difficulties with

          5  it.

          6                 I do have a prepared statement. It is

          7  brief. I will read it quickly.

          8                 We are here to speak in opposition to

          9  Senate Bill 2075, Assembly Bill 3561, which seeks to

         10  guarantee health insurance and welfare fund coverage

         11  to pre-merger retirees of the Transit and Housing

         12  Police Department.

         13                 I am opposed to the legislation on

         14  two grounds, it seeks to provide benefits that are

         15  already provided and it is technically flawed. The

         16  bill would on its face oblige the City to provide

         17  the same health and welfare medical benefits to all

         18  pre-merger retirees from the Police Departments of

         19  the New York City Housing and Transit Authorities,

         20  as are provided to retirees to the New York City

         21  Police Department.

         22                 The term health and welfare benefits

         23  and medical benefits would be defined by the

         24  appropriate collective bargaining agreements

         25  provisions.
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          2                 This bill has no functional purpose

          3  in that the situation that it purports to bring

          4  about, the provision of identical benefits to

          5  retirees from the merged Police Departments, is

          6  currently in effect and has been in effect since the

          7  merger.

          8                 Retirees of the merged departments

          9  continue to have available to them and to receive

         10  medical benefits that are identical in all respects

         11  to those who are available, which are available to

         12  and which are received by retirees of the New York

         13  City Police Department.

         14                 The obligations imposed by the bill

         15  are inappropriate and the City does not directly

         16  provide health and welfare benefits to employees and

         17  retirees but rather provides a level of funding for

         18  each retiree to the applicable union, which

         19  administers the provisions of the benefits to the

         20  retirees through a trust fund.

         21                 The City provides the same level of

         22  funding to the appropriate unions for all of the

         23  retirees that are covered by their health and

         24  welfare funds, regardless of whether those retirees

         25  derive from one of the merged Police Departments or
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          2  from the NYPD.

          3                 Consequently, the situation that the

          4  bill purports to address any discrepancy between the

          5  departments' retirees with regard to their receipt

          6  of health and welfare benefits does not exist.

          7                 One possibly unforeseen result of the

          8  enactment of this legislation would be to require

          9  the City to provide for non-uniform retirees of the

         10  Housing Police Department and the Transit Police

         11  Department.

         12                 This would run counter to agreements

         13  that were reached with the Housing and Transit

         14  Authorities at the time of the merger of the Police

         15  Departments.

         16                 That funding for benefits for the

         17  civilian retirees of those departments would not be

         18  the responsibility of the City.

         19                 Enactment of this bill would obligate

         20  the City to fund those benefits and lead to unfunded

         21  increases in costs to the City.

         22                 Finally, requiring that the terms

         23  under which benefits are provided to retirees be

         24  defined in a collective bargaining agreement runs

         25  counter to the New York City Collective Bargaining
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          2  law, under which employees are not mandated, the

          3  employers are not mandated to negotiate over the

          4  benefits which are received by former retirees.

          5                 The bill would effectively bootstrap

          6  some of the terms for the provision of benefits to

          7  retirees onto collective bargaining agreements,

          8  covering employees and would therefore establish a

          9  very confusing and dangerous precedent for future

         10  legislation relating to collective bargaining.

         11                 For the above-stated reasons the City

         12  strongly urges the legislation not be enacted.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 Do you have any questions?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: No questions at

         16  this moment.

         17                 Thank you, Mr. Hanley.

         18                 MR. HANLEY: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: At this moment we

         20  would like to call up Mr. Robert Unger, Joseph

         21  Fucito and Jonathan Schwartz.

         22                 Good morning. I first would like to

         23  hear Mr. Schwartz, if you have a response to the

         24  Administration's position on SLR 49?

         25                 MR. SCHWARTZ: Thank you, Council
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          2  Member Rivera.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: And of course

          4  also on the pension bills.

          5                 MR. SCHWARTZ: Yes. Well, 49, I don't

          6  know that I had much of an involvement with 49 to be

          7  honest. There are no pension costs entailed in 49,

          8  and usually what I get involved is legislation that

          9  potentially entails pension costs, you know, and I

         10  don't have any recollection of having been asked to

         11  do anything on that one by the employee groups who

         12  are involved.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Is Mr. Edward

         14  Neary here? Okay, we are going to continue and then

         15  Mr. Neary hopefully can respond to the

         16  Administration's position on SLR 49.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 MR. SCHWARTZ: Okay.

         19                 With respect to SLR 94, 98 and 102,

         20  just a couple of points.

         21                 Number one, it should be borne in

         22  mind that the groups in question are not looking for

         23  a handout, we are looking for a benefit improvement

         24  and we are looking to pay for it. We are not asking

         25  the City just to give this to us.
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          2                 Second, as regards to some of the

          3  points that Mr. Dowling raised, I would like to

          4  assure him that number one, I did indeed try to take

          5  account of all of the various points that he raised,

          6  the fact that people will retire earlier, there will

          7  be additional medical costs and so on and so forth,

          8  and I would like to put his mind to rest on at least

          9  one point. He expressed a concern that Tier I Deputy

         10  Sheriffs might get a real bonanza here. The Deputy

         11  Sheriff legislation does not cover its Tier I

         12  people. It only covers the Tier II, III and IV

         13  people. And unless there are any questions, that is

         14  about the only comments I have.

         15                 MR. UNGAR: Good morning, Mr.

         16  Chairman, members of the Committee. I am Robert

         17  Ungar, I am the Legislative Counsel to Local 2507. I

         18  am also the Legislative Counsel to the Fire Alarm

         19  Dispatchers Benevolent Association.

         20                 I would like to talk to you about SLR

         21  98. There are a couple of points we would like to

         22  make. First of all, in New York City the Emergency

         23  Medical Service has somewhere between 2,400 and

         24  2,500 responding EMTs and paramedics. These people

         25  respond to approximately 2 ambulance runs a year

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            25

          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  resulting from one and a half million incidents that

          3  are reported for emergency medical care every year.

          4                 They are out on the street about 85

          5  to 90 percent of every day that they come to work.

          6  They are continually working 16 hours back to back

          7  tours of duty on mandatory overtime because the City

          8  doesn't want to spend the money to staff up.

          9                 We have got a very dedicated, very

         10  professional and very, very experienced emergency

         11  medical workforce in the City. They are also the

         12  lowest paid emergency workforce in the City. And

         13  their benefit package for many years has been the

         14  Citywide package which applies to other City workers

         15  in clerical titles and administrative titles, and

         16  while that is fine in one respect, in another

         17  respect it is not so fine, which is that emergency

         18  responders in New York City, and I refer to our

         19  brothers and sisters in the police and fire

         20  suppression side of the Fire Department, it has long

         21  been recognized that emergency responders need a

         22  somewhat different package, a package that is a

         23  little bit more contoured to the type of work that

         24  they do in the field, the kind of hours that they

         25  work, the kind of exposure that they have and the
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          2  kind of physical labor that they have. And even a

          3  physically taxing pension is not quite there, you

          4  know, it is not quite the right deal for emergency

          5  medical responders in New York City. Probably next

          6  to the cops, this is the biggest emergency response

          7  agency in the City, probably makes them second

          8  busiest emergency response agency in the world.

          9                 So, our people burn out.

         10                 As a matter of fact, a very

         11  interesting statistic I think that you should keep

         12  in mind, especially in light of OMB raising the

         13  issue of even the potential of any cost on this

         14  bill, about 250 people, almost ten percent of our

         15  workforce comes over every year at EMS. Interesting

         16  statistic. Ten of them retire. About 240 of them

         17  pick up their bag and quit. They walk out. They are

         18  just gone. Or they go to another job, which as far

         19  as EMS is concerned, they quit, even if they go to

         20  another job, because EMS work, like police work and

         21  fire work is supposed to be a career, it is not a

         22  stepping stone to quote something better, it is a

         23  profession unto itself, with tremendous educational

         24  experience requirements for paramedics in

         25  particular, and it requires a tremendous amount of
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          2  skill and independent judgment on the streets of New

          3  York that save lives every day.

          4                 So, what this bill is about is about

          5  bringing EMS in New York City out of the stone age,

          6  and at least beginning to move them in a direction

          7  of being an emergency response service, which they

          8  are.

          9                 There are no handouts being asked for

         10  here. The members involved in this program will pay

         11  a significantly increased pension contribution, but

         12  the feeling in generating these bills was that in

         13  today's climate to come in and seek a pension

         14  similar to the Police Department or the

         15  firefighters, is probably just unrealistic, and the

         16  leadership of Local 2507 I think took a realistic

         17  point of view. They said if we need to move forward

         18  we may have to pay something for it, but there is a

         19  need for our people to be able to retire after 25

         20  years and to collect their pension.

         21                 The reason is because when you are a

         22  paramedic in EMT for 25 years and you are retiring

         23  in your late forties, where are you going? You are

         24  not going to be able to start some completely new

         25  independent career, so you are going to go from one
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          2  high stress, high physical, high psychologically

          3  taxing position, you are going to have to go find

          4  another paramedic job, you are not going to be able

          5  to pay for your kid's tuition and clothing and food

          6  on the table.

          7                 So the idea of a paramedic or EMT

          8  retiring and then having to wait to begin to collect

          9  any kind of a pension after putting 25 years of

         10  incredibly hard service into the streets of New York

         11  City, is not a situation which is beneficial to the

         12  employees and it is not beneficial to the City

         13  because our best people, our most experienced people

         14  quit. They just leave.

         15                 So, other cities with a better work

         16  environment, and less work, get the benefit of the

         17  combat training that our paramedics and EMTs get.

         18                 So, we ask the City Council in

         19  partnership with the work force at EMS, to look at

         20  this home rule message and this legislation as a

         21  partnership. Our members will pay for it. What we

         22  are asking the City Council to do is give us the

         23  ability to get up to Albany and continue this fight.

         24  We will pay our share, we are just asking you to

         25  give us your support.
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          2                 Thank you very much for your time.

          3                 MR. FUCITO: Good morning, Chairman

          4  Rivera, and members of the Committee. I am Dave

          5  Rosenzweig, I am President of the Fire Alarm

          6  Dispatchers Benevolent Association. I represent a

          7  small group of less than 200 of New York City's

          8  dedicated professions, who are responsible for the

          9  smooth functioning and efficient operation of the

         10  five separate communication centers, one in each

         11  borough, in addition to the Fire Alarm Dispatchers

         12  responding in our communication Field Operations

         13  Unit to all major fires and emergencies in New York

         14  City.

         15                 I am appearing here this morning in

         16  support of SLR 102, which is a proposed legislation

         17  allowing for an entirely member-funded 25-year

         18  retirement plan.

         19                 The entire cost of this retirement

         20  plan will be funded by an increase in pension

         21  contributions by participating members.

         22                 The groundwork for this retirement

         23  program has been in the planning stages for quite

         24  some time. Dispatchers work 12-hour shifts, 24 hours

         25  a day, seven days a week, making precise decisions
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          2  in life-threatening situations.

          3                 Last year alone, fewer than 200

          4  dispatchers processed in excess of one million

          5  emergency calls from citizens in desperate need of

          6  assistance requiring immediate response and dispatch

          7  of fire equipment. These emergency calls occur in

          8  addition to hundreds of thousands of civilian

          9  complaints received from fire safety violations and

         10  on regulations.

         11                 This perpetual activity makes us the

         12  busiest fire communication force in the country. In

         13  return, we contribute to the citizens of New York

         14  City the lowest processing time in the nation, 43

         15  seconds.

         16                 This legislation will allow dispatch

         17  members to retire at the completion of 25 years of

         18  service. The deleterious effect of shift work, as

         19  mandated by our work chart, are the manifestations

         20  in plethora of medical, physiological and

         21  psychological problems. The enclosed booklet that I

         22  have provided as a compliment to my presentation

         23  entitled Shiftworkers Handbook, elaborates most of

         24  the types of medical and physiological and emotional

         25  problems that are known throughout the country in
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          2  regard to shift work which is similar to what we do.

          3  And I can bring out some of them and I don't really

          4  need to, I will just move along. It is in my

          5  presentation, it is in the book, but I think the

          6  major one is the sleep problem, which is 60 to 80

          7  percent chronic fatigue and also depression, which

          8  is much higher in shiftworkers than it is in the

          9  normal working population.

         10                 These and other conditions are the

         11  norm in terms of disorders that my members face. And

         12  in addition to those aforementioned, dispatchers'

         13  schedules contribute to a dysfunctional home life,

         14  with above average divorce rate, an increased use of

         15  alcohol, further irregular sleep patterns and

         16  frequent sleep deprivation, contribute to chronic

         17  fatigue, irritability and other sleep-related

         18  problems.

         19                 Besides the medical strains that fire

         20  alarm dispatchers encounter, my members have for

         21  nearly 20 years been forced to work under taxing,

         22  environmental conditions.

         23                 An example, the New York City Fire

         24  Department has not been in compliance with Mayor

         25  Directive 1-91 regarding ergonomic video display
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          2  terminal, VDT, equipment, promised to us in

          3  anticipation of the Fire Department's new computer

          4  assistance dispatch system.

          5                 As such, dispatch members have been

          6  working with obsolete equipment since 1980, nearly

          7  two decades. This equipment was obsolete at the time

          8  it was installed.

          9                 These unsatisfactory conditions

         10  contribute directly to neck, back strain injuries,

         11  competitive stress disorders, resultant of the

         12  City's failure to allow the dispatch force their VDT

         13  alternative work during 12-hour shifts that

         14  frequently become 18-hour shifts due to inadequate

         15  staffing levels.

         16                 These conditions are further

         17  exacerbated by poorly designed and improperly placed

         18  keyboards. Visual problems are also encountered as a

         19  result of improper illumination and screen

         20  placement.

         21                 In addition to the medical,

         22  psychological and physiological problems encountered

         23  by our dispatch force, they are subjected to

         24  continuous emotional distress each and every day

         25  tour that they work.
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          2                 Dispatch members are confronted with

          3  panic stricken highly distressed citizens, whose

          4  fear and uncontrollable emotions take hours to

          5  resolve at the completion of our tour.

          6                 This emotional strain takes a direct

          7  toll on family life, compounded when dispatchers

          8  must return to work again after six to 12 hours.

          9                 Further family and personal strain

         10  occur since earned time off is often unavailable,

         11  due to the agency's continuous demand on dispatch

         12  personnel to compensate for staffing shortages.

         13                 Imagine working for 25 years without

         14  knowing whether you will be able to celebrate a

         15  special event, a holiday with a loved on, religious

         16  observance, Thanksgiving, New Years, birthdays,

         17  graduations and anniversaries. Special days most

         18  people take for granted, instead dispatch members

         19  have continually been denied these opportunities and

         20  others and forced to work.

         21                 In summation, this proposal for a

         22  25-year retirement plan for dispatch members is in

         23  actuality a desperate call for help, help that has

         24  been unanswered by the Office of Labor Relations,

         25  and the agency, who have not met our repeated
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          2  requests for meaningful collective bargaining.

          3                 The union has tried unsuccessfully to

          4  negotiate without any response from the City

          5  concerning pension modification.

          6                 As a result, we have no choice but to

          7  seek resolution through the legislative modification

          8  for dispatch members.

          9                 My members will be contributing an

         10  additional six percent above their present pension

         11  contribute to support this entirely member-funded

         12  not cost to the City retirement plan.

         13                 Passage of SLR 102 will afford

         14  dispatch members the opportunity to lengthen their

         15  life expectancy after retirement, which is

         16  considerably shortened as a result of continual,

         17  physiological and emotional demand encountered by

         18  those highly dedicated professionals on a daily

         19  basis.

         20                 I strongly urge your support for SLR

         21  102, providing us with the ability to pay for our

         22  own enhancement at no cost to the taxpayers which we

         23  so desperately need.

         24                 Chairman Rivera, members of the

         25  Committee, thank you for allowing me this
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          2  opportunity to describe to you the conditions that

          3  our emergency personnel work under. I hope that this

          4  bill will meet with the positive response so that

          5  the fire dispatchers of the New York City Fire

          6  Department may begin to take affirmative measures to

          7  improve their working conditions.

          8                 I just would like to mention briefly

          9  that in our last bargaining which we are presently

         10  involved in, the '95/2000 contract, our demands

         11  requested that the City negotiate with us a

         12  modification to our pension. It was submitted to

         13  them last summer, and in fact we received no answer

         14  in regard to our particular demand. It wasn't a

         15  matter of where it was a give and take where they

         16  offered us anything or they took anything away. In

         17  fact, we have asked for them to consider it and they

         18  have met us with nothing at this particular point.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 MR. FUCITO: Good morning, Mr.

         21  Chairman. My name is Joseph Fucito. I am the

         22  President of the New York City Deputy Sheriffs'

         23  Association.

         24                 The proposed bill we establish, the

         25  20-year retirement program for New York City Deputy
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          2  Sheriffs, as the fiscal notes indicate, the bill

          3  will have no cost implications for the City or

          4  state, the entire cost will be borne by the

          5  individual Deputy Sheriffs themselves.

          6                 During the last ten years of

          7  employment, New York City Deputy Sheriffs have

          8  increased their law enforcement duties ten-fold.

          9                 The Sheriff's duties in the field of

         10  law enforcement involve preserving the peace, as

         11  well as being the chief law enforcement officer for

         12  the New York State Court system. These duties

         13  include the discovery and seizure of property, the

         14  arrest of individuals and the service of great

         15  mandates, orders, warrants and decrees of the court

         16  system in New York State.

         17                 These duties affect the rights and

         18  privileges and sometimes the liberty of others at

         19  every turn and involve problems and questions of law

         20  to a very high degree.

         21                 Last year the New York City Sheriff's

         22  Office enforced over 75,000 court orders. I know of

         23  no other Sheriff's office in the State of New York

         24  that have enforced that many orders. These orders

         25  include arrests of individuals for Family Court who
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          2  have violated orders of protection, who have failed

          3  to pay child support and who have failed to appear

          4  in paternity examinations.

          5                 We also execute mental hygiene

          6  warrants. These are warrants where a person is a

          7  danger to themselves or others and the court wants

          8  them removed from the public for observation.

          9                 We also are responsible for executing

         10  eviction and serving great amounts of Family Court

         11  process, such as subpoenas, summonses and orders of

         12  protection.

         13                 Deputy Sheriff's are required to have

         14  a bachelor's degree and are required to live in the

         15  City of New York. There are 163 Deputy Sheriffs

         16  currently serving in the Sheriff's Office. That is a

         17  lot of work for 163 Deputy Sheriffs to do.

         18                 One of our biggest problems has been

         19  competition, not with other agencies outside the

         20  City of New York, like the Nassau County and Suffolk

         21  County Police Department, but with the New York City

         22  Police Department itself. Many of our members are

         23  very proud to be Deputy Sheriffs, but when offered a

         24  chance to be a New York City Police Officer, the

         25  main reason they take the job is because of the
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          2  pension increase.

          3                 Being a Deputy Sheriff is a very

          4  proud job, it's a very good job and it's a very

          5  technical job.

          6                 Since 1995 our agency has lost 200

          7  people to leaving to other agencies, the majority of

          8  which had been the New York City Police Department.

          9                 Now, 200 people leaving a 50,000 man

         10  agency is no big deal. Two-hundred people leaving an

         11  agency that only supports 160 is a great deal. We

         12  fail to keep highly trained individuals in the

         13  Sheriff's Office and what happens is it fails to

         14  become a career that a person wants to stay with,

         15  and the sole reason for this, while we have

         16  interviewed everybody who has left, has been the

         17  pension.

         18                 What we proposed was we would put

         19  together a pension that would try to come as close

         20  to the 20-year retirement that the New York City

         21  Police Department has, obviously we can't -- we have

         22  to pay for that benefit ourselves. So, with an

         23  increase in pension contributions, our members would

         24  be entitled to a 20-year pension. However, it's not

         25  a true 20-year pension. After 20 years, our member
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          2  is not entitled to 50 percent, but only 44 percent.

          3  So, if a member would want to have full benefits,

          4  they would have to stay 25 years with the Sheriff's

          5  Office.

          6                 All we are asking for is the ability

          7  to let Albany decide if our case is just. Throughout

          8  the State of New York, Deputy Sheriffs are getting

          9  20-year retirement plans. The best example I could

         10  give would be the Nassau County Sheriff's Office.

         11                 The Nassau County Sheriff is the

         12  closest Sheriff's Office to mirror what we do here

         13  in New York City. They have a well-established

         14  Police Department, and their Deputy Sheriffs

         15  executive court orders like ourselves. Last year

         16  they were able to receive a 20-year retirement plan.

         17                 In closing, what we are looking to do

         18  is equal the benefits that our members have with the

         19  New York City Police Department so that we can keep

         20  well-trained, well-motivated individuals within the

         21  Sheriff's Office.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 MR. INGLESBY: Good morning, Chairman

         24  Rivera. My name is Andy Inglesby, I am the Assistant

         25  Director of the Political Action Legislation
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          2  Department, DC 37. It is my pleasure to be here this

          3  morning. I will be a man of few words. You have

          4  received my testimony in writing. Basically suffice

          5  it to say that DC 37, as the parent union of Local

          6  2507, believes that the stress and the physical

          7  exertion that is inherent in every tour of duty by

          8  the EMS personnel merit that they receive an early

          9  retirement pension plan that is similar to the

         10  Police Officers and Fire Officers of New York City,

         11  and the details are in my memo.

         12                 So, thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: I was reading

         14  this memo in support from EMTs, Local 2507, and I

         15  was also following as closely as possible some of

         16  your comments, Mr. Ungar, and it is leading to one

         17  quick question.

         18                 We recall the process of the merging,

         19  and those painful moments, it seems to me, I picked

         20  up over here from their memo that a lot of

         21  commitments were made. I think you touched on

         22  something in this area. How were those commitments

         23  made? Were they some part of a negotiation and

         24  somebody didn't keep their word or promise?

         25                 MR. UNGAR: Mr. Chairman, what I am
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          2  addressing myself to is, it starts at the merger

          3  hearings in the City Council several years ago,

          4  three and a half, I guess the hearings probably

          5  started almost four years ago now, where responsible

          6  Council members ask some very, very good questions

          7  of the leadership of the Fire Department and the

          8  Administration, at that time Howard Safir was the

          9  Fire Commissioner and many Council members,

         10  including yourself, put him to the questions about

         11  what are you going to do for the people? You are

         12  bringing them over but what is the real change? And

         13  without talking in specific terms, the

         14  Administration at that time, through its Fire

         15  Commissioner, said things like it will be much

         16  better when they come over here. They will be

         17  treated like real people. They will be better taken

         18  care of. We are going to build 40, 50, 60, 100, I

         19  don't know, some crazy number of ambulance stations,

         20  and they are all going to have warm comfortable

         21  quarters that they can go into, they are going to

         22  have a kitchen, they are going to have basically a

         23  firehouse of their own where they come in and go out

         24  and they are going to have a better working

         25  condition in the Fire Department.
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          2                 Now, the Fire Department is one of

          3  the best treated agencies in our City. The Police

          4  Department is another very well treated agency. When

          5  it comes to budget, nothing but the best.

          6                 In the pecking order of things,

          7  Police and Fire do quite well. Why is it that within

          8  a first class agency, a fabulous agency like the New

          9  York City Fire Department, that an entire subculture

         10  of second class citizens is allowed to exist in this

         11  Department?

         12                 I mean, this whole issue of pension

         13  reform, uniformed status for members of EMS within

         14  the Fire Department, this has been raised at Council

         15  meetings, it has been discussed at OLR. The answer

         16  always is it is not a subject for collective

         17  bargaining, it is not a mandatory subject for

         18  collective bargaining, it is always the same thing.

         19  So, when we look at the collective bargaining

         20  process, bargaining is one thing. When one side

         21  wants to bargain and the other side just says no,

         22  that is not bargaining. And that kind of bargaining

         23  I guess probably leads to organizations representing

         24  working people in this City having to sometimes come

         25  to the City Council like we have and say, hey, help

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            43

          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  us out, we can't move one inch. We have been talking

          3  about uniformed status for four years now and the

          4  answer just remains no. Even though uniformed status

          5  doesn't provide anything with it, other than a

          6  slight change in title because you would be EMT

          7  uniformed, instead of EMT civilian.

          8                 The members of the union feel that it

          9  is an absolute outrage that for three years now this

         10  second class citizen position is still allowed to

         11  remain in the world's greatest government agencies.

         12  The stratification between the firefighters and EMS

         13  had not gone away. The rivalry has not gone away. It

         14  can't go away as long as EMS personnel are being

         15  required to work 70 hours a week in the street, are

         16  being required to not pick their kids up from school

         17  because they are constantly being mandated for

         18  overtime, are never home on weekend, are never home

         19  on a holiday, get paid $33,000 a year, and have to

         20  wait until they are 55 to even consider a pension,

         21  no wonder nobody stays. Of course everybody quits.

         22  It is a lousy job.

         23                 But the members that are here now are

         24  trying to make it into a good job, into a career job

         25  that will benefit the people of this City.
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          2                 That is why we have made reference to

          3  commitments made and not kept. Generally speaking,

          4  the life of an EMT and a paramedic in New York City

          5  has not improved at all since the time of the

          6  merger. No additional benefit has been added, no

          7  relaxation of tremendous overtime requirements

          8  continuously, I mean it is horrible.

          9                 So, I hope, Mr. Chairman, that that

         10  provides an answer to your question on that

         11  particular point.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you, Mr.

         13  Ungar.

         14                 Mr. Stabile has a question to ask.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: First I

         16  apologize for being late, we had a meeting with the

         17  Queens Borough President.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: You are always on

         19  time.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Thank you.

         21                 I agree with all four pieces of

         22  legislation. I happen to agree with what Bob is

         23  talking about, and Dave spoke about before.

         24                 During the past good four years I

         25  would say, slowly but surely we have seen the EMS
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          2  get hit harder and harder and harder, and I don't

          3  see the camaraderie between the EMS and the Fire

          4  Department out in the street. I am still waiting for

          5  those little substations to be put up somewhere. I

          6  am waiting, and one day I am going to see them.

          7                 What I have in my district and which

          8  annoys the hell out of me, because people cannot

          9  understand why, and this is very honest and I am

         10  addressing the EMS first, is that when they see an

         11  ambulance parked on a block, they think the

         12  ambulance is goofing off. Well, the ambulance is

         13  hanging out there, the ambulance is parked there for

         14  four hours today -- they don't realize that that

         15  ambulance is assigned to that spot because

         16  strategy-wise that was the best place to put them so

         17  he can respond or she can respond to an emergency,

         18  and that has to get out to the public, that is why

         19  they are there.

         20                 And I support that bill and I will be

         21  a prime sponsor of that bill, I will be a prime

         22  sponsor of all four bills, they have no problem

         23  there.

         24                 On the other end, I want to talk

         25  about the Sheriff's Department. I have never -- I
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          2  did not know much about the Sheriff's Department,

          3  and I am not embarrassed to say it. I think it is a

          4  very well kept secret you guys have been doing for

          5  many years. Shame on you and shame on Frank, because

          6  up until the day Frank came to my office, I didn't

          7  realize half the duties you did.

          8                 You have got to get your word out

          9  there to the public because everyone sees the

         10  Sheriff just as a bad guy towing away cars or part

         11  of the marshals. There is a tremendous confusion

         12  here, and I think your group has to do a little PR

         13  in getting the message out, so even Republican

         14  conservatives can know what is going on out there,

         15  and I also support that bill.

         16                 One of the biggest things that I

         17  feel, and I feel this honestly, I don't care what

         18  you do for a living, when you work for the City in

         19  stressful positions, you cannot work more than 20,

         20  25 years, otherwise you are burnt. You are not only

         21  physically burnt, you are mentally burnt and then

         22  you are no good for yourself or your family. So that

         23  is why I am supporting all of this legislation.

         24                 Thank you all very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: We also have been
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          2  joined by Council Member Sabini.

          3                 If there are no further questions to

          4  be asked of the panelists, then we would like at

          5  this moment to call Mr. Edward Neary to come up and

          6  speak on SLR 49. And we would like for Mr. Bob

          7  Ungar, and those who are panelists, to remain while

          8  we are voting.

          9                 MR. NEARY: Mr. Chairman, I would like

         10  to give the podium to our President for the

         11  Association, Mike Spadafora, and I will speak

         12  regarding Mr. Hanley's objection to the bill.

         13                 MR. SPADAFORA: Good morning. I have a

         14  small statement prepared. My name is Michael

         15  Spadafora, I am the President of the New York City

         16  Retired Transit Police Association. I would like to

         17  thank the Chair, as well as the entire Committee for

         18  giving us the opportunity to be heard today.

         19                 State legislation has been introduced

         20  and when enacted into law will provide New York City

         21  Transit and Housing Authority police retirees with

         22  the same level of future health, welfare and medical

         23  benefits to the New York City Police Department

         24  retirees.

         25                 This legislation before this
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          2  Committee today for approval of home rule message

          3  has been referred to the City Council as SLR 49.

          4                 As you well know, the merger of the

          5  Transit and Housing Police Department to the New

          6  York City Police Department was accomplished without

          7  legislation. Memorandums of understanding regarding

          8  the merger of the Departments were absent provisions

          9  of safeguards concerning benefits for the Pre-merger

         10  Transit and Housing police retirees.

         11                 Without the safeguard legislation,

         12  benefits for our retiree population and their

         13  families may be subject to diminishment or

         14  elimination.

         15                 Many of these benefits were obtained

         16  as a result of past collective bargaining agreements

         17  between the Transit and Housing Authorities, New

         18  York City, and the respective former Transit and

         19  Housing police unions. The benefits in peril are

         20  basic health insurance coverage, as well as retiree

         21  health and welfare benefit programs.

         22                 When the merger became a reality in

         23  1995, a tentative agreement between the Transit PBA

         24  and the various New York City Police Department

         25  unions was agreed upon. Unfortunately the agreement
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          2  only covered provisions dealing with one-time

          3  transfer of funds from Transit Police, health and

          4  welfare benefit programs, to that of respective New

          5  York City Police Department and union benefit

          6  programs.

          7                 This agreement has no legal standing,

          8  other than acting as a recipient for the legal

          9  disbursement of funds by the former Transit PBA.

         10  However, with the criminal convictions of former

         11  high level executive officers of Transit Police PBA,

         12  it is evident that the best interests for the

         13  retiree in the merger process, was not their

         14  concern.

         15                 Additionally, as a result of the

         16  absence of legislation to delineate Transit and

         17  Housing pre-merger retirees coverage, several NYPD

         18  health and welfare fund administrators are

         19  intentionally denying benefits to our retirees that

         20  are afforded to their NYPD retiree counterparts.

         21                 This legislation, when enacted,

         22  presents no additional fiscal impact upon the City

         23  of New York. Last year, the identical version of

         24  this legislation received the necessary Home Rule

         25  Resolution from the City Council, was passed by the
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          2  New York State Assembly only to expire with no

          3  cation being taken by the State Rules Committee.

          4                 Our members and their families are

          5  dependent upon the benefits, which they

          6  (approximately 3100 Transit and 1700 Housing Police

          7  retirees, have honorably earned while in service to

          8  this great City.

          9                 The majority of our retiree

         10  population are now senior citizens with limited

         11  earning capabilities. Many are disabled as a result

         12  of injuries and illness incurred while in service. I

         13  would hate to think that anyone involved with the

         14  merger process intended for this inequity to

         15  intentionally exist. It is only fair that all Police

         16  retirees in New York City receive the same level of

         17  benefits.

         18                 On behalf of all our members and

         19  their families, we respectfully solicit your support

         20  and passage of this extremely important, necessary

         21  and urgent legislation before you today.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 MR. RIVITUSO: My name is Daniel J.

         24  Rivituso, and I would like to thank the Chair and

         25  this Committee for giving me this opportunity to
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          2  speak here this morning.

          3                 I am an AARP volunteer state

          4  coordinator for consumer issues, as well as the

          5  former chairman of the New York State Legislative

          6  Committee of the American Association of Retired

          7  Persons, which represents AARP's two and a half

          8  million members in New York. It is on this

          9  Committee's behalf that I speak to you this morning

         10  to urge you to support SLR 49.

         11                 In 1995, when the New York City

         12  Transit and Housing Police Departments were merged

         13  with the New York City Police Department, the

         14  benefits and contractual rights of active members of

         15  both of these departments were protected as they

         16  became existing members of a merged Police

         17  Department.

         18                 It was during this time and as an

         19  afterthought that the question of who would

         20  administer the health, welfare and medical benefits

         21  of a group of men and women who had served both the

         22  citizens of this City and their respective

         23  departments faithfully and honorably for so many

         24  years and who had retired prior to this merger did

         25  it come up. A question that should never had come up
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          2  when it came to the health and welfare of those

          3  retirees. To put it more succinctly, the faith of

          4  these retirees which caused great concern.

          5                 During this time of decision and then

          6  only at the urging of the New York City Retired

          7  Transit Police Officers' Association did the then

          8  Transit Police PBA begin to shop around in an effort

          9  to secure a similar administrative health and

         10  welfare plan until it was agreed upon that the

         11  benevolent association representing the various

         12  ranks of the New York City Police Department

         13  administer said fund.

         14                 To ensure this agreement be

         15  continued, passage of Senate Bill 2075 and Assembly

         16  Bill 3561 is so important, which requires a Home

         17  Rule resolution by the City Council.

         18                 The Home Rule resolution will enable

         19  passage of state legislation that would require New

         20  York City to provide retirees from both the New York

         21  City Transit and Housing Police Departments with the

         22  same health, welfare and medical benefits as

         23  provided to the New York City Police Department

         24  retirees.

         25                 It is only fair that all police
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          2  retirees receive the same level of benefit.

          3                 Let me repeat that the health and

          4  welfare of these brave and dedicated men and women

          5  should not be shopped around, they deserve certainty

          6  and security.

          7                 It is on behalf of the American

          8  Association of Retired Persons State Legislative

          9  Committee who strongly support this legislation that

         10  I ask that you support and pass SLR 49.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 MR. CARUBA: Mr. Chairman, members of

         13  the Committee, thank you for the opportunity to

         14  speak.

         15                 My name is Richard Caruba, President

         16  of Columbia Association of Retirees and I am also

         17  speaking on SLR 49. I don't want to be repetitious,

         18  but I feel that, our group feels this was an

         19  oversight, and in the rush to merge things, promises

         20  were made and obviously they went a little too fast,

         21  they weren't kept, and we feel that our members on

         22  this end are getting a little shortchanged, we are

         23  talking about health care now. Do we not get sick,

         24  do we not get old? Of course we do. So, we are

         25  urging that you pass SLR 49, and I thank you for
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          2  your cooperation.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: I have one

          5  question to ask all three of the gentlemen here --

          6  the four of you.

          7                 First of all, he reminds me of the

          8  moving, the TV show the detective over there? You

          9  are a little better looking, but don't worry about

         10  it. He has got a rougher face. Law and Order,

         11  whatever it is.

         12                 I want to ask you a question that

         13  always bothers me because I am always getting hit up

         14  by your retirees. Did they ever straighten out the

         15  problem with the ID cards? You know the ID card that

         16  says -- I mean, because somebody gave me a very

         17  interesting story, he got stopped once and he had

         18  his gun on him, and he was explaining to the guy

         19  that he was a hired Transit, Housing police or

         20  Transit police, I can't remember, but I think he was

         21  Transit, and he said there is no such thing as

         22  Transit police, so what are you doing with a gun?

         23  And the guy was like totally embarrassed, he said

         24  first of all, because he was a police officer, he

         25  put his 24 years of service into the Department, and
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          2  the police officer who did stop him said this is

          3  Transit police, there is no Transit police. Was that

          4  ever straightened out? Did you ever get this ID card

          5  thing straightened out?

          6                 MR. SPADAFORA: Unfortunately we will

          7  always be retired Transit and Housing police

          8  officers. They made contingency plans to use

          9  whatever leftover ID cards that were in existence

         10  prior to the merger with the Housing and Transit

         11  Police authorities until they were exhausted and at

         12  that point there is no longer going to be an ID card

         13  issued.

         14                 This is what we were told. We are

         15  hoping that that situation corrects itself, but it

         16  is obvious within a short time the merger is only

         17  three and a half years old. We are already

         18  forgotten, we just want to make sure our benefits,

         19  we think they are a little bit more important --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: I agree.

         21                 I was just wondering, because I

         22  remember at that time it was an issue, people were

         23  asking questions about it.

         24                 MR. SPADAFORA: We still have the

         25  original ID.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay, thank

          3  you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Would you please

          5  speak on 49?

          6                 MR. NEARY: I just would like to

          7  address some of the concerns that were brought up by

          8  the Office of Labor Relations.

          9                 The merger seemed to --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Will you please

         11  identify yourself for the record?

         12                 MR. NEARY: Once again, I am Edward

         13  Neary from the Retired New York City Transit Police

         14  Officers Organization.

         15                 The merger was accelerated in the

         16  October 25th, 1994 Agreement, a letter that was sent

         17  to then Chairman Peter Steingall, which in essence

         18  nullified an agreement that went back to 1955, which

         19  mandated that the City would fund the cost to the

         20  Transit Police Department.

         21                 At that time the Transit Authority

         22  was faced with the possibility of picking up the

         23  tabs themselves out of the operating funds or to go

         24  to Albany and possibly get state funding.

         25                 It was obvious that state funding was
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          2  impossible to get, and in order to maintain the

          3  integrity of the subway token, the price of the

          4  subway token, the City of New York and the unions

          5  agreed to go ahead with the merger.

          6                 Exactly the same agreement that

          7  maintains our health and welfare fund to a letter of

          8  agreement is very similar to the agreement that was

          9  established with the Transit Authority in 1955, as

         10  no legal standard could be rescinded at any time.

         11                 The purpose of the legislation is

         12  obviously to codify a letter of agreement or some

         13  other form would make it a lot harder, won't have to

         14  come in front of a board such as this. That is all

         15  we are trying to do.

         16                 The health and welfare issue became

         17  an issue only when we found out that it wasn't an

         18  issue in the merger talks.

         19                 We had to go to court, we went in

         20  front of Judge Arbor in Manhattan, and then at that

         21  point the City said, well, it was an oversight on

         22  our part, we are going to sit down, we will probably

         23  work something out with the union.

         24                 They shopped us around, they tried to

         25  put us into some other health and welfare funds that
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          2  were definitely to the detriment of the retirees,

          3  both Housing and Transit police, and finally it was

          4  agreed upon that they put us into the health and

          5  welfare fund. But only covered under the memorandum

          6  of understanding. And we don't want the memorandum

          7  of understanding to end up the same way that the

          8  memorandum of understanding protects or establishes

          9  Medicare Part B reimbursement.

         10                 Every year we know that the retirees

         11  have to run in the unions and fight to get the

         12  medicare reimbursement. It was somewhere in the 90

         13  percent range. We were told in the seventies that it

         14  would be 100 percent. So, we don't want to have this

         15  happen to us. We are obviously a dying breed.

         16  Funding is not the issue here. We are not looking

         17  for guarantees in the sense that we would always

         18  have a health and welfare fund as opposed to if they

         19  ever decide to eliminate NYPD's. We are taking a

         20  chance, we just want to be treated just like NYPD

         21  retirees, and for some reason at the collective

         22  bargaining table, they decide that they are going to

         23  eliminate health and welfare funds for whatever

         24  reason, well then I guess our fund is eliminated. We

         25  realize that. But we will take that chance and that
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          2  is all we are really trying to do.

          3                 As far as any other back door, this

          4  only handles health and welfare and medical

          5  payments. It is not for any other inequity that

          6  might exist between Housing and Transit Police and

          7  NYPD.

          8                 Also, we are already seeing an

          9  interpretation by each health and welfare

         10  organization, where in fact we are being denied

         11  certain benefits that are available to the same

         12  classification of retiree. We find ourselves writing

         13  letters and threatening possible lawsuits in order

         14  to correct these inequities. We have been able to do

         15  it but it is almost like every time we make a move

         16  we find another obstacle in front of us. And at this

         17  stage in our lives, with our retiree population

         18  being, you know, the age and the financial

         19  categories that they are, I don't think we need

         20  this, and we are asking City Council to please help

         21  us out. It is a one-shot deal. Unfortunately, like I

         22  said, we are all a dying breed and we won't be here

         23  anymore because at that point we will be treated

         24  just like your NYPD retirees, both at the collective

         25  bargaining table and through future legislation.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: We want to thank

          4  you.

          5                 At this moment we would like to --

          6  again, thank you. We are calling up the next

          7  panelists.

          8                 MR. SPADAFORA: Thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: We would like to

         10  know if the Administration has any opposition to SLR

         11  47?

         12                 We would also like to ask if there is

         13  anyone in the audience who would like to testify on

         14  behalf or against SLR 47?

         15                 MR. MULLEN: Good morning, Mr.

         16  Chairman.

         17                 My name is Al Mullen. I am with the

         18  Mayor's Office of Legislative Affairs.

         19                 The Administration has no opposition

         20  to SLR 47.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 I would like to recognize that we

         25  have with us students from IS 227. They are a school
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          2  in Council Member Helen Marshall's District. We

          3  would like to welcome you to this Chambers, very

          4  historic chambers. What we are doing at the moment,

          5  is we are dealing with a number of bills that we

          6  believe that will address the issue of pension of

          7  men and women who have worked so hard in the City of

          8  New York and we feel that your coming to this

          9  hearing hopefully will leave an impression upon all

         10  of you, and as you make a decision what you would

         11  like to become after you finish working hard on

         12  educating yourself, whether you want to be a

         13  teacher, a principal, or you might want to be a

         14  member of New York as a police officer or a fire

         15  officer, or any of these other services that is

         16  providing the City of New York. Or if you want to,

         17  some of us -- there is something called term limits,

         18  so we won't be in this job in the next two years, so

         19  there are going to be a lot of openings and you need

         20  to be of the voting age and of age to run for

         21  office. Also consider becoming an elected member of

         22  this City Council, and I wish you the best and we

         23  thank you and we hope you enjoy your day in this

         24  City Council and City Hall area.

         25                 We don't want to inconvenience
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          2  anyone. What you witness on the outside is what we

          3  are trying to, once we leave government, City

          4  government that is, whether the Mayor Rudy Guiliani

          5  and the members of the City Council, is that we

          6  leave a beautiful park surrounding City Hall. So, I

          7  welcome you to this chambers today.

          8                 Please, Mr. Sabini.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Chairman.

         11                 I just want to welcome the students

         12  from Louie Armstrong as well. You know, I, as many

         13  other members of the Council, have two jobs, one as

         14  a political leader and I am the Democratic District

         15  Leader for Louie Armstrong School, and it is a very

         16  innovative institution. The Chancellor and the

         17  Queens College have a collaborative effort there, it

         18  is not part of any district. It is a model for

         19  innovative education and we are very proud to have

         20  it in the Jackson Heights and East Elmhurst

         21  community. I want to welcome the folks from Louie

         22  Armstrong. Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: At this moment we

         24  would like to invite back the Administration to deal

         25  with the two Mayor's messages. There are two
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          2  different items.

          3                 COMMISSIONER TORMENTA: Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Welcome.

          6                 COMMISSIONER TORMENTA: I have some

          7  formal testimony I would like to read.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Please do. Also

          9  identify yourself for the record.

         10                 COMMISSIONER TORMENTA: Certainly. I

         11  am Louis Tormenta, Commissioner of the Department of

         12  Design and Construction, and with me today is my

         13  first Deputy Commissioner Ken Holden.

         14                 Good morning. I appreciate the

         15  opportunity to come before you to address the

         16  important issue of joint bidding and to ask that the

         17  necessary home rule message be approved.

         18                 I would like to reiterate the

         19  memorandum of support of Senate Bill 2284, which was

         20  submitted by Anthony P. Piscitelli, Director of the

         21  City's Office of State Legislative Affairs.

         22                 The bill amends general municipal law

         23  Section 103 to authorize the City of New York to

         24  include in a construction contract any work deemed

         25  necessary or desirable to maintain, support, protect
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          2  and/or accommodate, remove, relocate, alter,

          3  replace, reconstruct or improve energy,

          4  telecommunications, and other private facilities or

          5  structures not owned by the City which are located

          6  within traversing or adjacent to the construction

          7  area.

          8                 The bill deems such work, public work

          9  for the purposes of Section 103 and thus permits the

         10  City to award a contract to the lowest responsible

         11  bidder for all of the work, including utility

         12  interference work.

         13                 The bill also provides the cost of

         14  such work are not borne by the City.

         15                 Public rights of way generally

         16  contain not only municipally owned utility services

         17  like watermains and sewers but also utility lines

         18  for the transmission of energy and

         19  telecommunications.

         20                 These private facilities often must

         21  be moved or protected in order for the municipal

         22  work to proceed.

         23                 The municipal work can be delayed or

         24  stopped if the utility is required to negotiate the

         25  price of protecting or moving the utility facility
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          2  with the contractor for the municipal work.

          3                 The negotiations often stall when the

          4  de facto monopoly position of the municipal

          5  contractor leads to prices that the utility believes

          6  to be far in excess of the value of the work.

          7                 Delay of the municipal work adversely

          8  affects the public at large as well as local

          9  businesses.

         10                 In an effort to reduce the negative

         11  impacts resulting from the construction delays as a

         12  result of utility interference, in 1992 the City of

         13  New York began the practice of joint bidding. This

         14  practice requires bidders to provide separate prices

         15  in municipal work and the private utility work. The

         16  contract is awarded to the responsible bidder

         17  submitting the lowest price for the combined work.

         18  Utilities reimburse the City, such that the City

         19  never pays more than the lowest price bid on City

         20  work. Taxpayers are able to benefit from the

         21  significant advantages of joint bidding at no

         22  additional cost.

         23                 Recently a contractor who had bid the

         24  lowest price for the municipal portion of a project

         25  but was not awarded the contract because his bid was
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          2  not the overall lowest bid, challenged the City's

          3  practice of joint bidding.

          4                 The Court of Appeals determined that

          5  the private utility work is not public work and

          6  cannot be included in a contract for municipal work

          7  pursuant to general municipal law Section 103 unless

          8  specifically authorized by the legislature. The bill

          9  would specifically grant such authorization.

         10                 Experience in the City of New York on

         11  more than 20 contracts has shown that jointly bid

         12  contracts establish more reasonable prices for

         13  utility interference work and speed street

         14  construction jobs, thereby reducing the adverse

         15  impact on the public in local businesses.

         16                 Among the projects in the City

         17  benefitting from the joint bidding were Columbus

         18  Avenue in Manhattan, Ninth Street and Tompkins

         19  Avenue in Brooklyn, Booth Memorial Avenue and

         20  Baisley Boulevard in Queens and the Carpenter Avenue

         21  area of the Bronx.

         22                 Conversely, projects such as Hudson

         23  Street, Boston Road and Queens Village did not

         24  include joint bidding and were subject to

         25  construction delays due to utility interferences.
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          2                 Enactment of this legislation will

          3  benefit the public in the following ways:

          4                 - Reduce the length of time residents

          5  and businesses must put up with the inconveniences

          6  associated with construction, such as open trenches,

          7  dirt and dust, reduced emergency vehicle access,

          8  parking restrictions, bus detours and temporary bus

          9  stops.

         10                 - eliminate the unnecessary economic

         11  hardship suffered by local businesses when streets

         12  remain blocked off and inaccessible as a result of

         13  project delays caused by protracted negotiations

         14  between a contractor and utility company.

         15                 - Ensure a predictable construction

         16  process that can be anticipated and allows us to let

         17  you know when we will be starting and completing

         18  work at any given location.

         19                 The Department of Design and

         20  Construction wholeheartedly supports Mayor Giuliani

         21  in urging the earliest possible favorable

         22  consideration of this proposal by the legislature.

         23                 As an added item which is not in my

         24  testimony, my written testimony, I would like to

         25  tell you that the State Department of
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          2  Transportation's enabling legislation actually also

          3  allows them to perform joint bidding, even on

          4  projects where the state builds within the City

          5  boundaries.

          6                 I would like to add that, and

          7  certainly this is a concept that via the written

          8  word is not always something we can picture and

          9  understand what interference work is, so we have

         10  actually brought a little photo here to explain sort

         11  of what interference work is about.

         12                 This is the corner of William and

         13  Wall Street. It is a photo taken in 1917, and what

         14  you actually see underground is all of the utility

         15  work that we are talking about. We are actually

         16  going back into this corner this year. This summer

         17  we will be digging up this area of Wall Street to

         18  install a new watermain, a 12-inch water main in

         19  this part of the City of New York.

         20                 When we talk about interference work,

         21  we are talking about having our contractor install

         22  what is the City utility, which is the water main,

         23  via all of these and within all of these

         24  restrictions that you see in the photos.

         25                 Obviously the legislation is
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          2  extremely important because it gives us the ability

          3  to do this work without creating undue delays to the

          4  citizens of the City of New York.

          5                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

          6                 Any questions?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Ms. Kathryn Freed

          8  would like to speak on this issue.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Chair.

         11                 I am glad you are bringing this bill

         12  forward. As you may recall, my Contracts Committee

         13  that I chair actually had a hearing on the results

         14  of the effects of the Diamond Asphalt case and I

         15  think we all agreed that it was kind of a disaster

         16  for this City, not only you pointed out a number of

         17  the projects, such as the ones on Hudson Street,

         18  which I happen to be familiar with that have been

         19  problems, but there are numerous very necessary jobs

         20  throughout the City that have been delayed, at least

         21  a year, in some cases two years, such as I know we

         22  had done, the bidding had gone out on the laying of

         23  water main the entire length of Canal Street, which

         24  has been delayed several times, in the interim we

         25  have had a number of water main breaks and a number
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          2  of other problems. So I just basically wanted to say

          3  I am glad you are bringing this forward and I am

          4  very supportive of it and I think we very much need

          5  it.

          6                 COMMISSIONER TORMENTA: Thank you very

          7  much. Thank you for your support.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: I don't believe

          9  there are any further questions so we would like to

         10  thank you for participating, and at this moment we

         11  would like to call up the Landmarks.

         12                 COMMISSIONER TORMENTA: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 We have been joined by a second group

         16  from IS 227. We want to welcome you to this very

         17  historic place. Part of our job here is we make very

         18  important decisions that affect the lives of 8

         19  million people that live in the City of New York.

         20  Hopefully throughout the years we have done as best

         21  as we could to provide you with the necessary tools

         22  in your school, provide you and work along with the

         23  best teachers that we have in this City. We also at

         24  this moment are dealing with a number of legislation

         25  that we hope that will continue to improve, if not,
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          2  better the lives of men and women who have made

          3  tremendous contributions to our City.

          4                 I said earlier to the other class

          5  that we apologize for any inconvenience that you

          6  might have had walking into the building. We are

          7  doing construction at the moment in front of this

          8  building, and hopefully, Mayor Rudy Giuliani might

          9  not be around as the Mayor of the City of New York

         10  the next two years, and most of us, the members of

         11  the City Council, because something called term

         12  limits, we can only serve for about a total of eight

         13  years, so there are going to be a lot of openings.

         14  So if you have any friends that are looking for a

         15  good job, you can probably have them run for the

         16  City, the Mayor of the City of New York, or maybe

         17  for members of the City Council.

         18                 The pay is fairly good pay, but the

         19  benefits and the satisfaction that we get as we work

         20  to make a contribution to keep up our services and

         21  do the kind of things that we feel we need to do, to

         22  continue to better serve the City of New York.

         23                 So, again, we want to welcome you to

         24  these Chambers and we are sure that the

         25  Sergeant-At-Arms will give you a full history of
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          2  this building that we are all working in, and I want

          3  to once again welcome you on behalf of the member of

          4  this Committee, and we hope you enjoy yourself.

          5                 Perhaps Council Member Sabini might

          6  want to share some of his feelings.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you, Mr.

          8  Chairman. I just want to welcome the folks from

          9  Louie Armstrong as well. Council Member Marshall is

         10  the Council Member for Louie Armstrong, but I serve

         11  as Democratic District Leader for this school and

         12  the students come from all over Queens because it's

         13  a specialized school that the Chancellor and Queens

         14  College have a hand in running, and its a grand

         15  educational experiment that has worked for well over

         16  a decade and I welcome them here today as well.

         17  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you, Mr.

         19  Sabini.

         20                 We have been joined by Council Member

         21  Mary Pinkett.

         22                 Will you please at this moment

         23  identify yourself?

         24                 MR. SILBERMAN: Yes. Good morning,

         25  Chairman Rivera and members of the community. My
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          2  name is Mark Silberman, I am the General Counsel of

          3  the Landmarks Preservation Commission, and I am here

          4  to urge you and the Council to pass a home rule

          5  message in favor of S.2286 and A.7027 in the State

          6  Legislature which will amend the New York City

          7  Charter to allow the Environmental Control Board to

          8  hear cases involving violations of the Landmarks

          9  Law.

         10                 In particular what these bills will

         11  do is allow the Environmental Control Board to

         12  automatically docket judgments entered in cases

         13  involving Landmarks legislation, landmark

         14  violations.

         15                 This is an important final step to

         16  implement local law 1 of 1998 which this Council

         17  unanimously passed in January of last year, which

         18  revamped the Landmark Commission's enforcement

         19  powers to allow us for the first time to enforce the

         20  Landmarks Law through civil penalties.

         21                 We urge you to support this and we

         22  are fully behind it, and I am happy to answer any

         23  questions that you may have about this bill and the

         24  Landmarks Law.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Council Member
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          2  Sabini.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you, Mr.

          4  Chairman.

          5                 Taking my ancillary position as Chair

          6  of this subcommittee on Landmarks, this particular

          7  bill, as Mr. Silberman says is an outgrowth of

          8  Council Member Fisher's Local Law 1 that revamped

          9  the whole Landmarks law. Tell me how much in terms

         10  of money you think you might save based on the

         11  amount of time that not having docketed violations

         12  cost you?

         13                 MR. SILBERMAN: Council Member Sabini,

         14  I don't have hard numbers but I can tell you that

         15  not having to take judgement to Civil Court from the

         16  ECB to make them enforceable, basically would cut

         17  the work in half.

         18                 If this passes and ECB has automatic

         19  docketing power, judgments issued in ECB cases are

         20  fully enforceable by the ECB. Without this power the

         21  City would have to take these judgments to Civil

         22  Court, institute a separate action to make these

         23  enforceable. So, it is a very duplicative action

         24  which cost not only the City money but respondents

         25  money and time to deal with those civil lawsuits.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you, Mr.

          3  Chairman.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Ms. Pinkett has a

          5  question.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: I also would

          7  like to support this legislation because I think it

          8  is a step in the right direction. I wonder, however,

          9  has Landmarks considered the possibility as to what

         10  they can do to get the City to take a more positive

         11  role in those properties that the City might own or

         12  have voice in what they neglect to care for or

         13  cherish or protect what are and could be designated

         14  as landmarks. It seems to me we lose many properties

         15  because the City does not take positive actions to

         16  preserve many properties that should be landmarked.

         17                 MR. SILBERMAN: I can't speak for

         18  properties obviously that are not landmarked.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Obviously you

         20  can't but I am asking you, have you considered that

         21  as a possibility? As you go through the City you

         22  must observe buildings that ought to be in better

         23  shape and better condition that should be certainly

         24  preserved and I wonder if the Landmarks has ever

         25  thought of ways in which there could be
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          2  recommendations made that might protect such

          3  buildings or that the City could perhaps take some

          4  steps to protect such buildings.

          5                 MR. SILBERMAN: I am not aware of any,

          6  Councilwoman.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Okay, thank

          8  you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 MR. SILBERMAN: Thank you very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: At this moment we

         13  would like to call up the Administration to speak on

         14  SLR 63, and the accompanying preconsidered SLR.

         15                 MR. GOLDBERG: Good morning, Mr.

         16  Chairman, members of the Committee. My name is Allan

         17  Goldberg, I am Assistant Deputy Commissioner of

         18  Environmental Health of the New York City Health

         19  Department. I appreciate the opportunity to speak to

         20  you about a bill pending in the State Legislature

         21  relating to the authority over a city's management

         22  of animals in any city having a population of over 2

         23  million.

         24                 More precisely, the bill removes the

         25  sole authority of the Mayor of such cities to
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          2  designate the Agency for Animal Protection. This

          3  bill would amend Chapter 179 of the laws of 1987,

          4  which transfer the responsibility for maintaining

          5  shelters for lost, strayed and homeless animals to

          6  the City.

          7                 This bill in and of itself creates no

          8  basic and immediate change in the City's management

          9  of animal care and control responsibilities.

         10  However, the stated intent of this legislation as

         11  expressed in the justification accompanying the

         12  Assembly Bill 1218 is to remove the Mayor's

         13  exclusive authority over the City's animal control

         14  programs, thereby empowering the City Council to

         15  establish a separate department in animal affairs.

         16                 The intent appears to be to transfer

         17  to the City Council the responsibility for

         18  day-to-day management and financial decisions

         19  regarding animal care and control.

         20                 The intent of the proponents of this

         21  legislation is clear, if we look at an attempt in

         22  1997 to file a petition for a ballot initiative to

         23  create a new New York City Department of Animal

         24  Affairs. The initiative contained numerous highly

         25  detailed provisions and mandates and would assign to
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          2  the new agency powers and substantial obligations

          3  not previously held by any municipal agency.

          4                 The initiative would have established

          5  the Commissioner of Animal Affairs to be appointed

          6  by the Mayor and three Deputy Commissioners, when

          7  including very detailed specifications restricting

          8  the Mayor's authority to appoint such staff,

          9  including their specific credentials.

         10                 The ballot initiative also included a

         11  detailed and expansive list of the powers and duties

         12  of this Commissioner and the new agency.

         13                 Among them were several

         14  responsibilities that have historically been the

         15  responsibility of the Department of Health, such as

         16  administering dog and horse licensing laws.

         17                 These would have required changes in

         18  the health code, the administrative code and state

         19  laws.

         20                 The State Supreme Court determined

         21  that the ballot initiative conflicted with

         22  provisions in state law and that the administrative

         23  detail specified in the initiative exceeded the

         24  authority of the ballot initiative mechanism, and

         25  this decision was upheld by the Appellate Court.
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          2  Enactment of this state bill would be the first step

          3  in creating a new Department of Animal Affairs.

          4                 I believe we all take pride in the

          5  fact that New York City is a City of animal lovers,

          6  and we all agree that we want a shelter system for

          7  stray and homeless animals that expresses the best

          8  and most humane instincts of New Yorkers. The

          9  Department of Health has exercised its

         10  responsibility for control of animals and

         11  animal-borne diseases with appropriate care, concern

         12  and diligence for the safety of the City's residents

         13  and visitors, as well as concerns for the humane

         14  treatment of animals.

         15                 However, it is not clear to us what

         16  purpose a separate Department of Animal Affairs will

         17  serve. If the concern is as the author of this

         18  legislation indicates in the bills accompanying

         19  justification, that this activity has never been

         20  adequately funded, it is then unclear how the

         21  creation of a separate agency would address this

         22  concern.

         23                 Although establishment of a

         24  Department of Animal Affairs is a matter of public

         25  policy and subject to public debate, it is
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          2  questionable whether a City agency would result in

          3  satisfying the proponents of this measure any better

          4  than the current arrangement.

          5                 In fact, there are substantial and

          6  significant advantages to the City's current

          7  contracting arrangement with a private, non-profit

          8  agency for most of these services.

          9                 These include the ability to solicit

         10  and to receive private charitable contributions.

         11  This kind of flexibility becomes even more important

         12  during periods of economic downturn, when

         13  competition for City funding is necessarily more

         14  intense.

         15                 As you may know, in January of 1995,

         16  the ASPCA relinquished its contract with the City

         17  for the management of the municipal animal shelters

         18  and the Department of Health entered into a contract

         19  with the Center for Animal Care and Control, which

         20  was established as a private non-profit organization

         21  to manage the City's animal shelters.

         22                 Since the Department of Health

         23  contracted with them, CACC has -- has contracted

         24  with CACC to manage the City's animal shelters, we

         25  have made significant strides in improving a system
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          2  which was characterized by inadequate facilities and

          3  outdated equipment.

          4                 The operating budget for CACC has

          5  increased from slightly over $4.8 million in 1995,

          6  its first year of operation, to approximately $6

          7  million in Calendar Year 1998, of which $5.7 million

          8  is from City tax levy funding and the remainder is

          9  from voluntary contributions.

         10                 The addition of another $2.2 million

         11  included in the Mayor's Fiscal 2000 budget will

         12  bring the annual operating budget of CACC to more

         13  than $8 million, an increase of about 70 percent.

         14                 This budget does not include the

         15  City's very significant in-kind contribution in

         16  administrative services and overhead costs, such as

         17  computer hardware, telephones and utilities and the

         18  cost of purchase or rental of the facilities

         19  themselves.

         20                 The condition of the City's shelters

         21  when we assumed responsibility for them several

         22  years ago, has proven to be a considerable challenge

         23  for us at the Department. We have embarked upon an

         24  ambitious capital plan for expanding and modernizing

         25  the physical plants of the animal shelters, which is
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          2  essential to improvements in this system.

          3                 We are completing a 12,000 square

          4  foot $2.5 million renovation on the shelter in

          5  Brooklyn, and nearly $3 million has been allocated

          6  to renovate and upgrade the Manhattan shelter, which

          7  will begin during the next few months.

          8                 These renovations are designed to

          9  provide state-of-the-art boarding facilities, which

         10  will greatly improve sanitary conditions and noise

         11  levels in the shelters, enhancing the living

         12  conditions of the animals.

         13                 In addition, we are moving ahead with

         14  plans to establish a facility in Queens. Three sites

         15  have been identified and we are currently under

         16  review by the Department of Citywide Administrative

         17  Services. We hope to be able to begin work on that

         18  facility in the near future and have projected the

         19  cost at approximately $2.3 million.

         20                 As we have proceeded with renovating

         21  and upgrading the physical facilities, we have also

         22  proceeded with other improvements to modernize the

         23  operation of the animal shelters.

         24                 Information technology has been

         25  enhanced with the introduction of Chameleon, a
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          2  central databased software package that will more

          3  effectively attract animals and monitor daily CACC

          4  operations.

          5                 Services will be enhanced with the

          6  expansion of the newly renovated Brooklyn facility,

          7  from five days a week to seven days a week, 24 hours

          8  a day.

          9                 With the recent addition of funding,

         10  CACC will increase the number of kennel attendants

         11  so as to improve cleanliness in all of the shelters,

         12  and to increase adoption hours in Brooklyn and

         13  Manhattan.

         14                 Adoption services will be enhanced

         15  with the expansion of hours and increase in the

         16  number of service representatives to assist the

         17  public in adoption.

         18                 In addition, additional resources are

         19  being provided to improve rescue team's response

         20  capability, examine animals more rapidly and process

         21  paperwork more efficiently.

         22                 CACC currently handles more than

         23  63,000 animals annually, an increase of more than

         24  6,500 from 1995. CACC continues to reduce the rate

         25  of animals euthanized, from 71.5 percent in 1995 to
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          2  61.8 percent in 1998.

          3                 The percentage of animals adopted has

          4  increased from 17 percent in 1995 to nearly 19

          5  percent by the end of 1998, representing

          6  approximately 12,000 animals adopted.

          7                 Increasing the number of adopted

          8  animals and reducing the numbers that are euthanized

          9  is of course one of the major aims of the

         10  improvements in the system.

         11                 However, it must be noted that the

         12  rates of adoption and euthanasia in the City's

         13  shelter system, regardless of where operating

         14  authority of the system resides, can never be

         15  comparable to private shelters because most private

         16  shelters do not accept animals that are not

         17  adoptable.

         18                 The City shelters have responsibility

         19  for the final disposition of animals that no one

         20  else will accept, as well as those that are seized

         21  because they have become a serious threat to people.

         22                 We believe that a mere change in a

         23  bureaucracy will not change these numbers, but we

         24  have embarked on other policies to promote

         25  responsible pet ownership that can have a
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          2  significant impact.

          3                 First a spay/neuter policy that

          4  assures that all animals leaving shelters or altered

          5  will reduce the number of stray and unwanted

          6  animals. The Administration has proposed legislation

          7  to establish such a policy, which is currently

          8  pending before the City Council.

          9                 DOH is also embarking upon an

         10  important new campaign to promote dog licensure and

         11  pet vaccinations and encourage compliance with leash

         12  laws, all of which will provide safer and healthier

         13  pets and reduce the population of lost and stray

         14  animals in shelters.

         15                 We recommend that you not pass a home

         16  rule message.

         17                 Thank you for your time and

         18  attention.

         19                 Are there any questions?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 Council Member Provenzano, who is a

         23  member of our Committee, has a question to ask of

         24  you.

         25                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
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          2  GOLDBERG: Certainly.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: And then we will

          4  hear from Kathryn Freed on this issue.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: You

          6  haven't specifically laid it out in your statement

          7  but is it your feeling that it would cost the City

          8  considerable more money to develop an agency for

          9  this than it does now? Or are we paying more now?

         10                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         11  GOLDBERG: I think the likelihood of establishing a

         12  new City agency with an administrative

         13  infrastructure that doesn't exist beyond any cost of

         14  providing services to animals will necessarily be a

         15  more costly venture.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Would be a

         17  more costly venture?

         18                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         19  GOLDBERG: Just on the administrative structure of a

         20  City agency alone.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: They

         22  previously were contracted with ASPCA for many years

         23  which I personally think was a disaster, because I

         24  have had over time personal experiences with them,

         25  CACC, we have had some not so great reports from
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          2  them. What has been done, or would be done or could

          3  be done to improve that?

          4                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          5  GOLDBERG: Let me point out that the ASPCA was in the

          6  business for 100 years. CACC has been in --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: That is

          8  the key word, business.

          9                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  GOLDBERG: Well, it's a process. It is a business,

         11  and it is a difficult business. CACC has been around

         12  since 1995.

         13                 On the areas that were of greatest

         14  concern certainly at the beginning in terms of the

         15  physical plant where the animals were sheltered, in

         16  terms of euthanasia rates and in terms of adoption

         17  rates, CACC has made significant improvements from

         18  that of the ASPCA. They have got a ways to go,

         19  nobody is pretending that it is as yet a perfect

         20  organization.

         21                 We have made improvements, both the

         22  City and the organization itself, and will continue

         23  to do so over the ensuing years.

         24                 One of the points I was trying to

         25  make in my testimony is there is nothing in simply a
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          2  change in the bureaucracy in creating a new City

          3  agency that will in and of itself make those changes

          4  happen at all or certainly any faster, in our view.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          6                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          7  GOLDBERG: Thank you.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I also

          9  would like to go on record as saying some of you may

         10  think not, I am an animal lover. I have had many

         11  family members that were animals, dogs, cats,

         12  rabbits, snakes, gerbils what have you, and I really

         13  am concerned for the welfare of the animals. That is

         14  why I raised questions regarding this legislation.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you, Ms.

         17  Provenzano.

         18                 Ms. Freed.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thank you, Mr.

         20  Chair.

         21                 Obviously I am one of the sponsors of

         22  this legislation, along with Gifford Miller. I

         23  should point out that this bill is one that we have

         24  been pushing for in the City for some time. As Chair

         25  of the Contracts Committee, I guess now it is almost
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          2  two years ago, actually we have had several hearings

          3  on this and we have had one joint hearing withheld,

          4  and the Council Investigative section had published

          5  a 90-page paper two years ago, a year and a half

          6  ago, called Dying for Homes, and quite frankly that

          7  was a scathing indictment of the Center for Animal

          8  Care and Control.

          9                 We found that they had failed

         10  basically to comply with any of their contractual

         11  duties with the City of New York, that except for

         12  euthanizing animals, that a number of the other

         13  things which they were presumably supposed to do,

         14  including as a not-for-profit, soliciting funds,

         15  which they really hadn't been doing. They never

         16  really had a fundraiser and even to the point that

         17  there had been funds going into the CACC, there seem

         18  to have been no record or no accountability as to

         19  what happened with those funds.

         20                 We found that they have -- certainly

         21  under the current condition there is very little or

         22  no oversight, there is basically no accountability

         23  of the way the CACC works. It is very difficult for

         24  us in the City to even find out how much we are

         25  paying for them because so much money comes through
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          2  the Department of Health or through other agencies,

          3  it is almost impossible to keep track of how much

          4  real money we are spending.

          5                 I think, Mr. Goldberg, you mentioned

          6  the Chameleon system, we have tried for several

          7  years to try and get the CACC to set up the

          8  Chameleon. We even had trouble finding out exactly

          9  who paid for it or how much it cost, but to my

         10  knowledge it has still been there and yet to a great

         11  degree the CACC is failing to use it.

         12                 There seems to be no real way to find

         13  out what is going on at the CACC. We have learned

         14  that they still do euthanzie a large amount of

         15  animals, that while there is money going into the

         16  various previously City-owned and I guess still

         17  City-owned buildings that we ended up purchasing

         18  from the ASPCA, some of us felt even purchasing

         19  those buildings was a big mistake, and they seem to

         20  have been a black hole that we keep dropping money

         21  into. The money that has been set aside for the

         22  Queens Shelter seems to be endowed and seems to have

         23  been derailed in fact some of that money seemed to

         24  have been taken, put to the Manhattan Shelter, so we

         25  don't know where we are with going forward with the
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          2  Queens Shelter or when that will be done.

          3                 But the CACC continues to not perform

          4  parts of its contract, including doing education,

          5  including working with volunteers. Quite frankly, it

          6  has been a disaster.

          7                 I had a lot of problems with the

          8  ASPCA, but it seems that the CACC has followed in

          9  its shoes.

         10                 The reason there was so much support

         11  for putting a referendum on the ballot in the City

         12  of New York is because there certainly seems to be

         13  general agreement throughout the animal activist or

         14  the community that cares about animals that the CACC

         15  has been a problem. And in fact, after the City went

         16  to court to try and stop the ballot referendum, what

         17  the court said was get legislation to do this, that

         18  is a proper way to do it, and that is exactly what

         19  is now being done.

         20                 I don't know how much more strongly I

         21  could urge my colleagues to vote for this. I think

         22  it has got to be a step in the right direction, it

         23  is the only way we are going to kind of clean up.

         24  And the question is how animals are really cared for

         25  in this City, at the same time it will be sort of
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          2  one-stop shopping. There will be a Department of

          3  Animal Affairs. You won't have to go through what

          4  you do go through now which is several layers of

          5  bureaucracy and trying to find out if we have to

          6  deal with the Department of Health, we have to deal

          7  with the CACC, if we have to deal with the ASPCA, it

          8  should all be centered, or Parks Department or

          9  Police Department, it should all be centered in one

         10  department, I think quite frankly it will cut down

         11  on the bureaucracy and it will give us an accurate

         12  idea of how much we are spending, there will be

         13  oversight, there will be accountability, and as I

         14  said, I can't urge my colleagues enough to vote for

         15  this.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Council Member

         18  Miller.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Thank you, Mr.

         20  Chairman.

         21                 I had actually had a couple of

         22  questions. I want to build on what my colleague

         23  Council Member Freed, who has shown tremendous

         24  leadership on this issue and whose committee I

         25  served on when we held the hearings regarding the
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          2  Center for Animal Care and Control.

          3                 The one question -- well a couple of

          4  questions that I wanted to ask you, sir: First of

          5  all, you state that the establishment of Department

          6  of Animal Affairs is a matter of public policy and

          7  subject to public debate. Wouldn't this bill

          8  precisely, if passed by the State Legislature, make

          9  the establishment of the Department of Animal

         10  Affairs a matter, precisely that, a matter of public

         11  policy and subject to public debate?

         12                 I mean, isn't that the very purpose

         13  of this legislation?

         14                 Because currently, according to the

         15  judicial decision that we understand, despite the

         16  fact that 75,000 people signed a petition to have a

         17  referendum and to make this a matter of public

         18  discourse and a matter of public debate, a judge

         19  said that they couldn't do that because there was a

         20  piece of legislation and that this home rule would

         21  make it a public debate; isn't that the case?

         22                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         23  GOLDBERG: Not being an attorney, I will take your

         24  word that that is the case.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Okay. Well, I
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          2  mean, I think that is precisely the point that I am

          3  trying to emphasize -- that I think is being

          4  emphasized here by Council Member Freed and myself

          5  and others who have supported this legislation,

          6  which is that it would seem that this is an

          7  important service that the City is responsible for,

          8  and that whether or not you should establish a

          9  Department of Animal Affairs, I think that is

         10  something that we could all debate about, but we

         11  can't currently debate about it because there is

         12  this arcane piece of legislation in the State

         13  Legislature which prohibits such discussion, and

         14  that is precisely what we would be intending to do

         15  here. So, I want to make clear to my colleagues that

         16  this is not to establish the Department of Animal

         17  Affairs, this is only so that the City Council and

         18  the City and the residents of the City and the

         19  people and its elected officials can have a

         20  meaningful and articulate public discussion, and I

         21  would reference in particular the hearing that we

         22  had in the Contracts Committee under Council Member

         23  Freed's leadership, because one of the frustrations

         24  that we had there was that with the particular

         25  format or creation of the Center for Animal Care and
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          2  Control, it is my understanding that it is portrayed

          3  as an independent non-profit; is that correct?

          4                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          5  GOLDBERG: That is correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: And who

          7  appoints the Board of Directors of the Center for

          8  Animal Care and Control?

          9                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  GOLDBERG: Well, let me put it this way, the

         11  secretary of the State of New York has certified

         12  that organization as a not-for-profit corporation.

         13  Beyond that I am not sure I can answer the question.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: You don't know

         15  who appoints the Board of Directors?

         16                 I am sorry, your position is what?

         17  You are the Deputy Commissioner of the Department of

         18  Health and you have no idea who appoints -- I am

         19  sorry -- Deputy Commissioner, Bureau of

         20  Environmental Health Services from the New York City

         21  Department of Health and you don't who appoints the

         22  Board of Directors for the Center for Animal Care

         23  and Control?

         24                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         25  GOLDBERG: We contract with the organization, not
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          2  directly with the Board.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Do you have

          4  any clue who any of the Board of Directors are?

          5                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

          6  GOLDBERG: Yes, I do.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Can you name a

          8  couple?

          9                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         10  GOLDBERG: Neal Cohen, who is Commissioner of Health.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Right. So, he

         12  is a member of the Board of Directors and you are a

         13  representative here and you don't know who appoints

         14  the other members or the Board of Directors for the

         15  Center for Animal Care and Control?

         16                 ASSISTANT DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

         17  GOLDBERG: That has been asked and answered.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Well I am sure

         19  we will get an opportunity. But I mean, it is my

         20  understanding that the person who appoints all of

         21  the members of the Board of Directors is the Mayor,

         22  which is a very unusual sort of independent

         23  non-profit for which the City is contracting with, I

         24  would say. I can't think of any other example, and I

         25  think it is something that this City Council and the
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          2  public citizens have an opportunity and should have

          3  an opportunity to debate.

          4                 And I would point out that the

          5  independent members of the Board of Directors who

          6  came and testified, there were a couple of members

          7  of the Board of Directors who testified, regarding

          8  some of their concerns about the conduct, the

          9  operations of the Center for Animal Care and Control

         10  at Council Member Freed's hearing and they were

         11  immediately removed from the Board by the Mayor. So,

         12  I think their independence, perhaps it has been

         13  certified, but I think its independence is for

         14  realistic people, I think it is under question.

         15                 So, I would urge as well that this

         16  SLR be adopted, it is simply -- it is not a drastic

         17  step, this is simply acknowledging that this is an

         18  important service which the City is responsible for

         19  and which the City government should have a vigorous

         20  debate over.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         23  much. At this moment we would also like to call Ms.

         24  Marilyn Haggerty, who will be speaking in

         25  opposition.
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          2                 MS. HAGGERTY-BLOHM: Good morning,

          3  Chairman Rivera, Committee members and staff. My

          4  name is Marilyn Haggerty-Blohm, and I am the

          5  Executive Director for the Center for Animal Care

          6  and Control.

          7                 I appreciate the opportunity to

          8  address this Council Committee on the significance

          9  of the home rule regarding Assembly Bill A.1218. I

         10  am certain that the efforts of the individuals

         11  behind this bill are well intentioned. I am equally

         12  as certain that the efforts are misguided.

         13                 I would like to preface my remarks by

         14  stating that the Home Rule is merely a means to an

         15  end and it is that end that will have a significant

         16  and negative impact on the lives of the animals in

         17  our shelters.

         18                 It is my understanding that the

         19  proponents of Bill A.1218 would like to create a

         20  Department of Animal Affairs which would ultimately

         21  replace the non-profit Center for Animal Care and

         22  Control. In order to achieve that goal the New York

         23  State Dog Licensing Law must be amended to transfer

         24  oversight power for animal control from the Mayor to

         25  the City Council. This home rule is the first step
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          2  in that legislative process.

          3                 But following this process to its

          4  logical conclusion results in a new Mayoral agency

          5  -- the Department of Animal Affairs, subject to all

          6  of the bureaucratic constraints and budgetary

          7  regulation of all other Mayoral agencies. To achieve

          8  success therefore is to undermine the very

          9  independence and autonomy of the not-for-profit

         10  Center for Animal Care and Control.

         11                 At the present time, CACC has an

         12  administrative cost of 16 percent, which means that

         13  fully 84 cents of every dollar goes to the direct

         14  care of the animals in our shelters.

         15                 To create a Department of Animal

         16  Affairs, and leave in place the contract with CACC,

         17  will require the establishment of another layer of

         18  oversight which will likely erode the percentage of

         19  dollars actually providing care to the animals.

         20                 If the Department of Animal Services

         21  were to provide services directly, although perhaps

         22  not required by the original proponents of the

         23  legislation, it is unlikely that it would be able to

         24  maintain administrative overhead at less than 16

         25  percent.
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          2                 There is the further assumption in

          3  the justification for the legislation that the

          4  Department of Animal Affairs, if created, would be

          5  "headed by a person with a strong voice needed to

          6  properly represent animal control issues and

          7  advocate for adequate funding in the City's budget".

          8                 Since June 1997, as the Executive

          9  Director of this not-for-profit organization, I have

         10  lobbied the Administration for the funds necessary

         11  to enhance not only animal control but animal care.

         12                 The CACC budget has been increased by

         13  more than 50 percent during the past 18 months, from

         14  $4.85 million in 1997, until slightly more than 8

         15  million effective July 1st, 1999.

         16                 In the City Fiscal Year 2000

         17  Executive Budget Process, I requested $2.8 million

         18  in new needs, of which nearly $2.4 million has been

         19  included in the budget under consideration by the

         20  City Council.

         21                 In addition, all revenue generated at

         22  the shelter is now applied directly to services

         23  rather than offset against the DOH contract.

         24                 Furthermore, during this same time

         25  frame, the capital expenditures by the
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          2  Administration for CACC facilities has increased

          3  from under $4 million to an excess of $12 million,

          4  permitting the renovation of Brooklyn, the

          5  renovation and expansion of Manhattan, the

          6  acquisition and construction of a facility in Queens

          7  and annexing and renovating of a City-owned building

          8  adjacent to the Brooklyn Shelter.

          9                 In the budget currently under

         10  negotiation the Administration has included an

         11  additional $160,000 in capital funds for the

         12  upgrading of telephone systems, computers and

         13  medical equipment.

         14                 Finally, it is important to note that

         15  the CACC occupies facilities owned by the City,

         16  which also maintain utilities and phone systems

         17  which is a significant in-kind contribution that is

         18  often overlooked when calculating the City's

         19  expenditures for animal control.

         20                 We are all aware that Commissioners

         21  of City agencies do not have the discretion to lobby

         22  independently for additional funds for their

         23  agencies, but most work within the framework of the

         24  budget as outlined by the Mayor and the Office of

         25  Management and Budget. Thus, CACC has enjoyed a
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          2  clear benefit as a not-for-profit.

          3                 As I have stated, as a not-for-profit

          4  corporation, CACC enjoys considerable independence

          5  and autonomy, and how can that be measured? As a

          6  not-for-profit organization, CACC can negotiate the

          7  best price with its vendors rather than being

          8  subject to the Procurement Policy Board provisions

          9  governing City agencies.

         10                 As such, CACC has been able to

         11  achieve considerable savings on food,

         12  pharmaceutical, supplies and service contracts.

         13  While successfully arguing that it is the largest

         14  animal system in this country, CACC represents a

         15  marketing opportunity for our vendors.

         16                 CACC is able to select the best

         17  vendors and products and to arrange delivery

         18  expeditiously without the encumbrances of the City's

         19  purchasing guidelines.

         20                 Finally, as a not-for-profit, CACC is

         21  able to conduct fund-raising activities to

         22  supplement the funds allocated by the City. Since

         23  October 1998, one donor alone has provided more than

         24  $225,000 to CACC.

         25                 CACC has also received numerous
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          2  grants from foundations and corporations, as well as

          3  through the combined municipal campaign and company

          4  matching programs.

          5                 Additionally, products and services

          6  in the form of in-kind donations would be lost as a

          7  result of this home rule.

          8                 CACC continues to receive numerous

          9  small donations from individuals, primarily those

         10  who have utilized our services.

         11                 As the Department of Animal Affairs,

         12  the opportunity to cultivate private dollars would

         13  be sacrificed. I think that is a very high price to

         14  pay.

         15                 One last comment I would like to make

         16  on the record is a clarification of the statement in

         17  justification that CACC, "currently euthanizes 75

         18  percent of the 63,000 animals it takes in annually,

         19  despite the fact that most of them are healthy,

         20  sociable animals that would make loving pets if

         21  proper placements could be secured."

         22                 CACC receives animals from a variety

         23  of sources, including strays from the streets,

         24  owner-surrendered animals, the Police Department

         25  following arrests and the Health Department
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          2  following bites.

          3                 More than 4,000 animals are

          4  surrendered by their owners with the express request

          5  they be euthanized.

          6                 It is a fact that most of these

          7  animals are neither healthy nor sociable.

          8                 Considerable intervention in terms of

          9  veterinary care and resocialization are required to

         10  achieve a minimal assurance that the animal is

         11  appropriate for placement.

         12                 CACC has been making these

         13  investments to the extent possible.

         14                 In early 1998, CACC instituted a new

         15  statusing system based on objective criteria that

         16  affords every animal consideration for placement.

         17                 Despite expanding the categories of

         18  animals considered for placement, in 1998 the CACC

         19  euthanized 46 and a half percent fewer adoptable and

         20  14.7 percent fewer treatable animals. Overall

         21  euthanasia was reduced 8.5 percent.

         22                 Most of the change was realized

         23  through a greatly expanded reliance on local

         24  organizations and individuals who rescue animals

         25  from shelters and work to place them in suitable
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          2  homes.

          3                 In 1997, CACC placed less than 1,000

          4  animals with rescuers. In 1998 this number increased

          5  to 4,200.

          6                 But the fact remains that if one

          7  makes the simple assumption that every animal that

          8  enters the CACC shelter, is healthy and sociable,

          9  the euthansia rate is 62 percent, not 75 percent as

         10  reported.

         11                 We at CACC know better than anyone

         12  that this number is too high. Creating a new agency

         13  will do nothing to bring it down, if more money is

         14  diverted to administration it is likely to rise.

         15                 I ask you to consider the value of

         16  animal welfare remaining a not-for-profit so that

         17  the opportunities for animal care can remain a

         18  counter balance to the harsh realities of animal

         19  control.

         20                 Thank you for your time. I urge you

         21  to oppose this home rule.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Would you like to

         23  also speak on this issue?

         24                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: No? Then we would
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          2  like to thank you. We don't have any questions.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Can I ask a

          4  question?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Okay, James.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Let me just

          7  begin by commending my colleague Kathryn Freed,

          8  although we may not agree on every aspect of this

          9  particular bill, as a staff member to my

         10  predecessor, and mentor John Fusco, who was a member

         11  of the Health Committee, I am familiar, having

         12  attended various hearings, and I am familiar with

         13  Kathryn's passion for this particular issue and,

         14  again, I do commend her.

         15                 Commissioner, the Deputy Commissioner

         16  mentioned on page two of his testimony the

         17  advantages of this entity being a not-for-profit

         18  instead of a City agency and Marilyn, you just sort

         19  of flushed that out in talking about ability to

         20  lobby for additional funds or ability to fund raise;

         21  are there any other advantages to being a

         22  not-for-profit rather than a City agency in your

         23  work with other human groups in the City and in the

         24  State and in the country? I mean, are there other

         25  selling points to being a not-for-profit rather than
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          2  a City agency?

          3                 MS. HAGGERTY-BLOHM: I think there are

          4  many opportunities that we enjoy as a not-for-profit

          5  organization that we would not likely be able to

          6  take advantage of as a City agency, not the least of

          7  which is the opportunity to work with national

          8  organizations. As you all know, we brought HSUS, the

          9  Humane Society of the United States, into our

         10  shelters to do an evaluation to help guide us in the

         11  strategic planning that we recognize was needed.

         12                 Also, we have been working

         13  aggressively with the American Humane Association on

         14  developing national standards for adoptable animals

         15  so that every animal that is truly adopted will be

         16  recognized as such regardless of what shelter it

         17  might be in and regardless, quite frankly, of what

         18  time of the year it might end up in that shelter,

         19  something that we at CACC have been endeavoring to

         20  take the lead on to the extent that I have been

         21  invited to speak at the leadership forum in October

         22  at the National Conference of American Humane

         23  Association on just that point.

         24                 Much closer to home, I think one of

         25  the exciting things that we have embarked upon is
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          2  the establishment which our colleagues here in the

          3  City who are selective shelters and that they do

          4  not, they can choose to not accept an animal, unlike

          5  the Center for Animal Care and Control. But we have

          6  formed a New York Adoption Alliance with the ASPCA,

          7  the Humane Society and with BIDE-AWAY, with the goal

          8  collectively of ending the euthanasia of adoptable

          9  animals in the City of New York.

         10                 If we were a City agency, we would

         11  not likely be as able to partner with our colleagues

         12  as we are as a not-for-profit.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Chairman.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: I have a quick

         19  comment.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: First of all,

         22  who does appoint the members of your Board of

         23  Directors?

         24                 MS. HAGGERTY-BLOHM: The members of

         25  the Board are currently appointed by the Mayor of
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          2  the City of New York.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: They are

          4  appointed by the Mayor of the City of New York.

          5                 And it is the case that there were

          6  members of the Board of Directors who came down and

          7  testified before the Contracts Committee in the past

          8  about concerns and they were immediately removed

          9  from the Board of Directors; isn't that the case?

         10                 MS. HAGGERTY-BLOHM: It was prior to

         11  my involvement with this organization.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Prior to your

         13  involvement, okay.

         14                 I just think I would like to make a

         15  point of clarification for the other members of this

         16  Committee and for the record, that I understand

         17  that, I certainly can understand that as the

         18  Director for the Center for Animal Care and Control

         19  you would have concerns about whether or not the

         20  City should create a Department of Animal Affairs.

         21                 This legislation does not create a

         22  Department for Animal Affairs. It happens to be that

         23  many, many years ago there was a piece of

         24  legislation that was passed in the State Legislature

         25  that gave the Mayor the sole authority over this
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          2  particular City service. It's a sort of semi-unique

          3  thing that the Mayor has the sole authority and that

          4  75,000 went out and wanted to create a public debate

          5  about what we should do about the City's service,

          6  they were denied that opportunity to have that

          7  public debate and this Council was denied that

          8  opportunity to have that public debate because of

          9  that piece of legislation which was passed many

         10  years ago in the State Legislature and it said the

         11  Mayor instead of the City.

         12                 So, that what this legislation would

         13  do is not create a new Department of Animal Affairs,

         14  and I personally agree completely with the Assistant

         15  Commissioner for the Department of Health who

         16  testified, that this is a matter of public debate

         17  and should be open to public discourse and it is a

         18  public policy issue. That is precisely what this

         19  would do. It is not a conclusive thing, this would

         20  make that particular service which is an important

         21  service which is provided and which you are

         22  currently providing, but which is provided and is a

         23  responsibility of the City and the responsibility of

         24  every other City in the country, it would make that

         25  part of the public debate, it would make it a matter
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          2  of public policy over which City Council members and

          3  the Mayor and others could have a reasonable and

          4  reasoned discourse and so that is why we are

          5  supporting this legislation.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you.

          8                 We have six requests to speak on

          9  behalf of --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Oh, Mr.

         11  Chairman, I am sorry, I just would like to make one

         12  brief comment.

         13                 With regard to some of the specific

         14  objections, you know, with regard to the Department

         15  for Animal Affairs, if we are going to get on to

         16  that, I would point out that it seems to me that

         17  there is no reason why you couldn't have a City

         18  agency and not-for-profit. We have an innovative

         19  government. This Giuliani Administration has found a

         20  lot of ways to raise private dollars for public

         21  facilities. We have Adopt-A-Highway, we have people

         22  who give money to the Parks Department, we have all

         23  kinds of, you know, people give money to CUNY, we

         24  have all kinds of public agencies which do receive

         25  public support. So, I would say there is absolutely
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          2  nothing about the notion that this is a City

          3  responsibility and the City should accept that

          4  responsibility ultimately instead of creating sort

          5  of a sham, independent agency, which is inconsistent

          6  with all of the other things.

          7                 And you know, I am surprised -- I am

          8  confident, for one, that this Giuliani

          9  Administration could administer a Department for

         10  Animal Affairs without a ridiculous overhead.  We

         11  have heard our Mayor in the past talk about his

         12  ability to streamline and be efficient in terms of

         13  providing City services, and I am confident that he

         14  could do it in this case.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you.

         17                 We would like to bring up all

         18  together the six who would like to testify in favor

         19  of this bill.

         20                 That is five. Lilly is here. If all

         21  five are going to be speaking, we hope that you can

         22  be as brief as possible, because we are trying to

         23  get other members from this Committee to come up so

         24  we can move ahead and vote.

         25                 MR. KASKEL: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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          2  I will be as brief as I can. My name is Gary Kaske,

          3  and I am the Co-Chairman of the Shelter Reform

          4  Action Committee. I was also integrally involved in

          5  the writing of the proposed legislation, which the

          6  1997 ballot initiative was put to fore and garnered

          7  75,000 signatures from the New Yorkers who believe

          8  that a Department of Animal Affairs should replace

          9  the Department of Health.

         10                 There were several statements made by

         11  the City this morning that are just patently untrue,

         12  or distorts the intentions of this initiative.

         13                 First of all, under the proposed

         14  legislation to create a Department of Animal

         15  Affairs, the Department had the right to contract

         16  out, and therefore that Department could very well

         17  contract to the Center for Animal Care and Control,

         18  the very same agency that the Department of Health

         19  contracted to.

         20                 However, the difference being that

         21  the Department of Animal Affairs would have a

         22  mandate to protect animals. The Department of Health

         23  has no mandate to protect animals. Its mandate is to

         24  protect human health. And they see animals as a

         25  threat to human health, dog bites, rabies, et
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          2  cetera.

          3                 This agency has been so dishonest in

          4  its representation of how it maintains this

          5  contract, it has been uncooperative with the City

          6  Council in providing information about the contract,

          7  its senior officials have refused to meet with its

          8  critics, refused to have any kind of a dialogue with

          9  the Shelter Reform Action Committee, and they

         10  arrogantly play with the numbers that they

         11  supposedly are making such wonderful gains with from

         12  year to year.

         13                 Marilyn Haggerty-Blohm moments ago

         14  has tried to represent that the euthanasia rate of

         15  adoptable animals is 46 percent, at least it is

         16  touted in this press release that was sent out by

         17  the Mayor's Office and published in local papers

         18  that the animals have been reduced for euthanasia by

         19  46 percent, if you qualify the adoptable animals.

         20  This is just a numbers game that they play. This is

         21  no reflection of reality. The number of adoptable

         22  animals is an interpretive number and they are

         23  interpreting it as a much lower number than the

         24  actuality to make themselves look good.

         25                 It has nothing to do with the reality
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          2  of the fact that they are putting down more than 80

          3  percent of the animals that come into the shelters

          4  with no chance to rehabilitate them, with no chance

          5  to treat them for sicknesses, broken legs, broken

          6  bones, and other curable defects that would make

          7  them perfectly adoptable.

          8                 This City has a rabid anti-pit bull

          9  policy in which any pit bull, no matter how gentle

         10  and sweet it might be, is a candidate for immediate

         11  euthanasia that comes to the shelters.

         12                 This entity is still trying to

         13  misrepresent its intensions, its supposed good

         14  intentions, and the fact of the matter is that they

         15  can't do any significant fund raising under the

         16  current arrangement because nobody is going to give

         17  money to a kill shelter that is controlled by the

         18  Mayor of the City of New York.

         19                 I would like to read into the record

         20  today a letter from Todd Davis, a now former Board

         21  member of the Center for Animal Care and Control.

         22  The letter is dated May 14th. It is addressed to

         23  Marilyn Haggerty-Blohm and Doug Mansfield, the

         24  Secretary.

         25                 "Dear Marilyn and Doug:

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            116

          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 I hereby resign my offices of

          3  Director and Treasurer for the Center for Animal

          4  Care and Control effective immediately. The present

          5  structure and composition of the Board is such that

          6  the two animal advocates on the Board have at the

          7  very most an advisory role in managing the Center.

          8  As I believe that this is not consistent with the

          9  general duties and responsibilities of directors, I

         10  have decided that I should not continue in the

         11  offices I hold.

         12                 As we have discussed, I am hopeful

         13  that the Board will soon be constituted to provide

         14  more effective oversight for the Center."

         15                 The Board of Directors of this

         16  supposedly not-for-profit independent entity is a

         17  sham Board of Directors. Alan Goldberg sits in this

         18  chair and faces this Board with the audacity to say

         19  that he doesn't know who appoints the members of the

         20  Board is just an outright lie. And that is the

         21  attitude that you can expect from the Health

         22  Department officials overseeing the contract.

         23                 The CACC is also promulgating fees

         24  and regulations on their own without meeting the

         25  requirements of CAPA, the Civil Administrative
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          2  Procedures Act. The Court has ruled that the CACC is

          3  subject to freedom of information and open meetings

          4  laws. They are a quasi-governmental agency at the

          5  moment, and yet they promulgate fees and rules that

          6  affect the public without any approval process,

          7  without a public hearing process, it is all

          8  internally made on their own and the Department of

          9  Health allows them to do this. It is not lawful

         10  under the City Charter.

         11                 In short, this debate needs to take

         12  place as to whether a Department of Animal Affairs

         13  should be formed. I believe if you read our proposed

         14  legislation, which is also posted on our web site,

         15  www.shelterreform.org, which posts extensive

         16  documentation about the Center for Animal Care and

         17  Control, you will realize that the Department of

         18  Health is the wrong agency to be doing this work,

         19  and I urge you to pass this so that a public debate

         20  can go forward.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 Again, if you notice, we need to

         25  bring back our members so that we can vote, so we
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          2  need for the rest of who want to speak to be really,

          3  really brief. And I thank you for speaking on what

          4  the Department of Health should be doing and not

          5  doing.

          6                 MS. PACHTMAN: My name is Michelle

          7  Pachtman, and I am here just as an ordinary citizen.

          8  I am ashamed to say that up until a couple of years

          9  ago I never had any interest in politics or

         10  government and a series of circumstances, I ended up

         11  adopting my first dog, and I just started to talk to

         12  people and I started to hear what was going on in

         13  our City shelters.

         14                 I know because the one that I got,

         15  who is a perfectly beautiful animal, could have been

         16  very close to being put down for no reason other

         17  than that there was no room in the shelter and her

         18  family didn't want to bother with hair on the rug.

         19                 Anyway, I am here because I was very

         20  surprised to discover myself two summers ago

         21  standing on street corners all day long for an

         22  entire summer getting signatures on these petitions

         23  for the Humane Shelter Reform Bill and I neglected

         24  my business, I have a small business, and I just

         25  couldn't not do it when I knew what was going on,
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          2  and it could be hearsay but I happen to live near

          3  the shelters and I happen to know a lot of the

          4  rescuers who go in there every day and scoop up as

          5  many animals as they can to try to find them homes,

          6  sometimes to the point that they can't function. I

          7  never had the courage to go into the CACC. I try to

          8  help in other ways because I think I can be more

          9  effective on the outside doing the little things

         10  that I could do. But I have the greatest respect for

         11  the people, ordinary citizens who are working to

         12  change a situation that is unconscionable in a City

         13  that prides itself on being one of the greatest

         14  cities in the world.

         15                 I am here because I want people to

         16  know and I want the Council members to know that New

         17  Yorkers do care, and while 75,000 New Yorkers may

         18  have signed that petition, I happen to know that

         19  there are many, many more who would like to change a

         20  system that simply does not work.

         21                 I know very rudimentarily, because I

         22  used to be a New York City Board of Ed employee, I

         23  was a teacher in Ft. Green, that there are certain

         24  things that were mandated by law to do, and the

         25  three things that I understand that the shelters are
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          2  supposed to do is teach humane education at the

          3  school, have low cost spay/neuter, and assertively

          4  promote adoption of animals.

          5                 I won't go into the details, but I

          6  have attended the hearings, I was at the hearing

          7  where two board members were fired in the middle of

          8  their testimony for stating the facts of the

          9  circumstances in the shelter, and I know that these

         10  things are not being done.

         11                 So, for people to sit here and quote

         12  numbers about 61 percent, 72 percent and to quote

         13  Marilyn Haggerty-Blohm, that the CACC represents a

         14  marketing opportunity, I can't even comment on that.

         15                 What I know is that whether it is

         16  61.8 percent or some other number, the fact is that

         17  nearly 100 perfectly adoptable animals are put to

         18  death every day in our City shelters, and I have to

         19  tell you, it might cost a little money to start, to

         20  have a really separate entity that is an agency

         21  specifically devoted to the welfare of animals, but

         22  over time it would save our City a lot of money.

         23                 Personally I am a taxpayer, I don't

         24  want a cent of my money going to kill animals if

         25  there is another solution. There are other cities in
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          2  the United States who have shown a marked decrease

          3  in the numbers of euthanasia because over time if

          4  you do go into the schools, and I am not talking

          5  about one school, as a token, I mean a real program,

          6  if they really do have low cost spay/neuter

          7  programs, if they really do promote aggressively

          8  adoption of animals, over the next ten years, if we

          9  started now we would really see a change and a

         10  marked drop, a dramatic drop in the numbers of

         11  euthanasia.

         12                 I just want to say that the CACC has

         13  actually made it difficult for people, citizens who

         14  do want to adopt, and this is from personal

         15  experience of all of the people I know in the Park

         16  who have adopted beautiful animals. I just don't

         17  agree that we can't do better, and I really urge

         18  you, I thank you for the opportunity to speak and I

         19  urge you to pass this bill for this referendum.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 At this moment, seeing that we have

         24  most of our members here, we will have to move ahead

         25  with a vote. We will continue to listen to
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          2  additional comments but we would like to move ahead

          3  quickly to vote.

          4                 We have been joined by Council Member

          5  Howard Lasher. We are ready to take the vote on all

          6  of the items on the agenda, and I would like to say

          7  for the record that I want to commend those who have

          8  been working for so many years to see what we have,

          9  we are trying to accomplish today. In my view, if I

         10  recall it has been during the last three

         11  administrations that this City has continued to ask

         12  working men and women to continue to tighten their

         13  belts, and to continue to sacrifice. My view is the

         14  time has arrived where we should do something for

         15  these men and women who have worked so hard and who

         16  perhaps at the end of the rainbow, reaching to the

         17  other end of the rainbow they are not asking you for

         18  a pot of gold, they are just asking for something

         19  called parity.

         20                 So at this moment, if any other

         21  members would like to make any comments, they are

         22  welcome to, as we vote on these items.

         23                 Will you please call the roll.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Rivera.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Pinkett.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Pass.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: DiBrienza.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Aye on all.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Sabini.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: May I be

          8  excused to explain my vote?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Feel free to do

         10  so.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: I just want to

         12  thank the Chair and members of the Committee for the

         13  action on the preconsidered involving moving

         14  jurisdiction of violations of the landmarks law over

         15  to ECB and giving them their docketing authority.

         16                 And with regard to the SLR 63, I want

         17  to say for the record I really was insulted by

         18  Commissioner Goldberg's professed ignorance on who

         19  appoints the members of the Board. He knows very

         20  well who appoints them and I think it is really

         21  criminal almost to sit here and lie before us, maybe

         22  that is why we should swear in our witnesses.

         23                 I vote aye on all.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Lasher.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: Aye on all.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Miller.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Aye on all.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Provenzano.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Aye on

          6  all.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Stabile.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Aye on all.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Oddo.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Aye on all, with

         11  the exception of SLR 63 which I abstain.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Pinkett.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: I would like,

         14  first of all, to concur with the remarks or to join

         15  in with the remarks of the Chair regarding the

         16  support of the rights for working people and the

         17  continued request that they give and give and give

         18  and they do more. I think the very fact if we looked

         19  at the employment status and how many people are

         20  doing the same job, and the absence of personnel at

         21  those very same jobs, we will know that they already

         22  gave at the office and they are still giving, and

         23  there seems not to be a recognition of the fact of

         24  the contribution of workers. It does appear to me

         25  there was a time when New York City was proud of the
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          2  fact that this was indeed a City that recognized the

          3  value of the contribution of working people, and

          4  that has disappeared, and the contribution of all

          5  people ought to be I think given value and

          6  recognized and while we understand that corporate

          7  strength is great and that we need investment and we

          8  need capital, we know that the corporate wealth

          9  cannot move without indeed the contribution of the

         10  human body to move that wealth forward.

         11                 And, so, I think that we are on the

         12  right track by saying that we work together and we,

         13  too, must value those people who make this City

         14  great.

         15                 I thereby join in voting aye in that

         16  legislation and all other legislation. And I would

         17  suggest that we should not examine only one segment

         18  of the population, but if we are going to examine

         19  before we reward, we must examine every segment of

         20  the population before we give rewards. And if we

         21  don't do that, we ought not call the question.

         22                 I vote aye on all orders.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Robles.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Aye on all.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: We would like to

          3  leave the vote open for Council Member Fisher.

          4                 Will you please announce the results?

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: The vote stands

          6  at ten in the affirmative on all, with the exception

          7  of SLR 63, which has a vote of nine in the

          8  affirmative, none in the negative, one abstention,

          9  and the vote is still open.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         11  much. I want to thank everyone. I want to thank the

         12  members of this Committee, and each member of this

         13  Committee, in my view, not only represent their

         14  districts very well, but they are a credit to being

         15  members of the parties that helped elect them,

         16  whether it is the Republican party or the Democratic

         17  party, I think they are a credit to those

         18  organizations, especially Mr. James Oddo, and Mr.

         19  Stabile, of course.

         20                 Thank you very much.

         21                 At this moment we would like to

         22  continue with the testimony.

         23                 Thank you very much for your patience

         24  and understanding. Thank you for your contribution.

         25                 MS. LEMMON: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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          2                 My name is Marcia Lemmon, I am here

          3  as a private citizen and as a human that is owned by

          4  two cats. I am here to express my strong support and

          5  also thanks for you for voting for the home rule

          6  message SLR 63.

          7                 I also want to go on the record as to

          8  the callous and indifferent attitude of the Deputy

          9  Commissioner of the Department of Health, and of Ms.

         10  Haggerty. I believe the City Council should demand

         11  from the Center for Animal Care and Control copies

         12  of their IRS 990 forms, to do a full and complete

         13  financial investigation as to how much funding they

         14  are getting, where it is coming from and where it is

         15  being used.

         16                 As Council Member Miller stated, this

         17  legislation is strictly to have a public debate in

         18  this matter, not to create any new agencies. It is

         19  to have the public debate that is sorely needed.

         20                 The current Center for Animal Care

         21  and Control is notoriously mismanaged and is bad for

         22  animals. It makes us humans, some of us, the

         23  dominant species on this planet even more callous in

         24  our attitude towards other species that inhabit this

         25  planet. CACCA, a good acronym if there ever was one,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            128

          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  has needlessly killed family members, beloved

          3  companions and pets through the bureaucratic

          4  indifference and mismanagement. They have shown

          5  themselves time and again not to be able to meet

          6  minimum standards of compassion and caring, and are

          7  certainly unable to do the job that is entrusted of

          8  them. It is my hope that by sending SLR 63 in

          9  support of Assembly 1218 and Senate 3963, that New

         10  York City can replicate programs for animal control

         11  similar to those used successfully in other cities.

         12                 I specifically refer to the success

         13  of Alley Cat Allies, an organization which I

         14  support, in Washington DC and northern Virginia.

         15                 Alley Cat Allies has developed

         16  programs to control the pet population, notably

         17  feral cats, by a simple humane trap, spay and neuter

         18  and release program.

         19                 Using the volunteered services of

         20  vets, veterinary technicians and animal lovers,

         21  hundreds of feral cats are humanely trapped, spayed

         22  and neutered and released into managed pet colonies.

         23                 Feral cats who have been spayed

         24  and/or neutered in this manner also have one of

         25  their ears tipped, it is where the tip of the cat's
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          2  ear is cut off under anesthesia so that future

          3  trappers will know that this feral cat is already

          4  neutered.

          5                 Animals by their very existence

          6  glorify God and add so much to our lives, they give

          7  us love, they give us empathy, they stay with us

          8  when we are ill, they are our faithful companions

          9  and members of our family. They deserve nothing less

         10  from us than our love and our compassion.

         11                 On behalf of my cat kids, PC and

         12  Little One, I urge you to send a strong message to

         13  Albany by supporting SLR 63.

         14                 Thank you for hearing my testimony.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 At this moment the hearing is

         18  adjourned until next time.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 12:55 p.m.)
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